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1022 Airport Parkway, Cheyenne, WY 82001
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant s telephone number, including area code: (307) 432-7000

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: Common Stock, par value $.01

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes © No x
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes © No x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No ~

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 229.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes = No ~

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
(check one):

Large accelerated filer ~ Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated filer ~ (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company X
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes ©~ No x

The aggregate market value of common stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of the last business day of registrant s most recently
completed second fiscal quarter was approximately $4,103,000.

As of March 1, 2010 there were 14,291,970 shares of Common Stock of the registrant issued and outstanding.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Great

Lakes Aviation, Ltd. (Great Lakes, we, our, its, it or the Company) notes that certain statements in this Form 10-K and elsewhere are

forward-looking and provide other than historical information. Our management may also make oral, forward-looking statements from time to

time. These forward-looking statements include, among others, statements concerning our general business strategies, financing decisions, and

expectations for funding expenditures and operations in the future. The words believe, plan, continue, hope, estimate, project, intend,
anticipate and similar expressions reflected in such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, and none of the

forward-looking statements contained in this Form 10-K or elsewhere should be relied on as predictions of future events. Such statements are

necessarily dependent on assumptions, data, or methods that may be incorrect or imprecise, and may be incapable of being realized. The risks

and uncertainties that are inherent in these forward-looking statements could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in or

implied by these statements.

As more fully described in this report, important factors that could cause results to differ materially from the expectations reflected in any
forward-looking statements include:

1) the effect of general economic conditions on business and leisure travel;

2) the receipt of economically sufficient Essential Air Service revenues;

3) dependence on connecting capacity at our hubs;

4) the payments and restrictions resulting from our contractual obligations;

5) the effect of rules regarding the effect of stock sales on the availability of net operating loss carryforwards;
6) the incidence of domestic or international terrorism and military actions;

7) competition from other airlines and from ground transportation;

8) the volatility and level of fuel costs;

9) the incidence of labor disruptions or strikes;

10) dependence on our key personnel;

11) the incidence of aircraft accidents;

12) the level of regulatory and environmental costs;

13) the incidence of technological failures or attacks;

14) maintenance costs related to aging aircraft;

15) the possibility of substantial numbers of shares being sold by our current investors;
16) the limited market for our securities;

17) volatility in the market price of our common stock;

18) our ability to remediate timely any deficiencies in our internal controls;

19) substantial numbers of shares being offered for sale;
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20) consent requirements for equity issuances under our agreements with Raytheon;
21) no expectation of dividends; and

22) anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents and lowa law.

See also Item 1A. Risk Factors, below for additional discussion of these factors.

Readers are cautioned not to attribute undue certainty on the forward-looking statements contained herein, which speak only as of the date
hereof. Changes may occur after that date, and we do not undertake to update any forward-looking statements except as required by law in the
normal course of our public disclosure practices.
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PART I

Item 1. BUSINESS
General

We are a regional airline operating as an independent carrier and as a code share partner with United Air Lines, Inc. ( United or United Airlines )
and Frontier Airlines, Inc. ( Frontier or Frontier Airlines ). Our code share agreements allow our mutual customers to purchase connecting flights
through our code share partners and to share other benefits such as baggage transfer and frequent flyer benefits (in certain instances), while we
maintain our own branding on our planes and ticket counters and our own designator code on all our flights. As of March 1, 2010 we served 60
airports in 15 states with a fleet of six Embraer EMB-120 Brasilias and 32 Raytheon/Beech 1900D regional airliners.

All scheduled flights are operated under the Great Lakes Airlines marketing identity in conjunction with code-share agreements with United
Airlines and Frontier Airlines at our Albuquerque, Billings, Denver, Kansas City, Ontario, CA , Milwaukee and Phoenix hubs. In January of
2010, we ceased operations at our St. Louis, MO hub.

We derived approximately 50% of our total revenue from the Essential Air Service program ( EAS ) in the 12 month period ending December 31,
2009. Under the EAS program, the United States Department of Transportation subsidizes flights serving specified communities in order to
promote the provision of essential air services to otherwise unprofitable or minimally profitable markets. The Department of Transportation
typically awards EAS routes for two-year periods for each city served. As of March 1, 2010, we served 43 EAS communities on a subsidized

basis.

We were incorporated on October 25, 1979 as an Iowa corporation and became a publicly traded company in January 1994.

General information about us and a current route map can be found at www.flygreatlakes.com. Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K, as well as any amendments and exhibits to those reports, are available free of charge
through our website after we have filed such reports with, or furnished them to, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.
Information on our website is not incorporated into, nor a part of, this Form 10-K or our other securities filings.

Essential Air Service Program

We derived approximately 50% of our total revenue from the Essential Air Service program ( EAS ) in 2009, which is administered by the United
States Department of Transportation (the DOT ). The EAS program was instituted under the Airline Deregulation Act of 1978 (the Deregulation
Act ), which allowed airlines greater freedom to introduce, increase, and generally reduce or eliminate service to existing markets. Under the

EAS program, certain communities are guaranteed specified levels of essential air service. In order to promote the provision of essential air
services, the DOT may authorize the payment of federal subsidies to compensate an air carrier that is providing essential air services in

otherwise unprofitable or minimally profitable markets. An airline serving a community that qualifies for essential air services is required to give
the DOT advance notice before the airline may terminate, suspend, or reduce service. Depending on the circumstances, the DOT may require the
continuation of existing service until a replacement carrier is found. EAS rates are normally set for two-year periods for each city. Significant
fluctuations in passenger traffic, fares and associated revenues, as well as fluctuations in fuel and other costs, may cause EAS routes to become
unprofitable during these two-year terms.

At the end of the two year term for EAS service to a particular city, the DOT may request competitive proposals from other airlines. Proposals,
when requested, are evaluated on, among other things, the level of service provided, the amount of subsidy requested, the fitness of the
applicant, and comments from the communities served.
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Essential Air Service ( EAS ) Program Activity

In February of 2009 we added service to five additional communities under the EAS program. We initiated service from Glasgow, Glendive,
Havre and Wolf Point, MT to Billings, MT; and we commenced service to Grand Island, NE from Kansas City, MO.

In April of 2009, we commenced service to Kingman, AZ from Ontario, CA.

In November of 2009 we discontinued service to Marion and Quincy, IL, and Cape Girardeau, MO from St. Louis, MO.
In December of 2009, we discontinued service to Decatur, IL from St. Louis, MO.

In January of 2010, we discontinued service to Burlington, IA from Kansas City, MO.

In January of 2010 we transferred our Ft. Leonard Wood, MO service from our St. Louis hub to our Kansas City hub and ceased operations in
St. Louis.

As of March 1, 2010, we served 43 EAS communities on a subsidized basis.
United Airlines and Frontier Airlines Code Share Relationships

United Airlines. We have operated under ticket revenue proration code share agreements with United Airlines since April 1992. On May 1,
2001, we transitioned from a United Express branded code share agreement to a unique code share agreement that provides United with code
share marketable access to all seats on Great Lakes aircraft where the United code share product can provide our mutual customers connecting
opportunities and access to all of the benefits of the United product line including convenient baggage transfer and United s frequent flyer
program. The agreement provides Great Lakes the opportunity to establish code share relationships and interline relationships with any other
carriers at any Great Lakes hub. Operational terms of the May 2001 transition from United Express branding, to Great Lakes branding, provided
for the repainting of our aircraft to reflect the Great Lakes livery and the remodeling of Great Lakes ticket counters to promote the Great Lakes
brand while maintaining automated check-in for connecting United passengers. The current terms of the United code share agreement provides
for the use of United Airlines flight designator codes on certain flights that connect with United flights at our Billings, MT, Denver, CO, Kansas
City, MO, Ontario, CA and Phoenix, AZ hubs.

Frontier Airlines. On May 3, 2001, we entered into a code share agreement with Frontier, which was implemented July 9, 2001. The Frontier
agreement facilitates additional convenient access to connecting seat inventories and makes available the entire Frontier product line to all Great
Lakes communities. The Frontier flight designator code (F9) can be used on Great Lakes flights connecting with Frontier s flights at our
Albuquerque, NM, Billings, MT, Denver, CO, Phoenix, AZ and Milwaukee, WI hubs.

Accordingly, certain flights to and from our Billings, Denver, and Phoenix hubs carry both the United Airlines and Frontier Airlines flight
designator codes and all flights throughout our route system may carry the Great Lakes designator code.

During 2009, we estimate that approximately 39% of Great Lakes connecting passenger traffic utilized the United code share product line and
approximately 21% of Great Lakes connecting passenger traffic utilized the Frontier code share product line.
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Since 1982, Great Lakes has developed and maintained various interline relationships with numerous domestic and international airlines. In
recent years, as the industry has modified it s interline ticketing and baggage agreements to move towards a higher reliance on internet based
distribution structures, the traditional paper ticket transaction systems are being phased out. Great Lakes is committed to being part of the airline
industry s mission to simplify the customer relationship. As a byproduct of this commitment, we have recently developed electronic ticketing
(e-ticket) interline agreements with Continental Airlines, U.S. Airways, United Airlines and Frontier Airlines. We intend to update our
remaining paper ticket interline agreements with e-ticket processing procedures.

Markets

As of March 1, 2010, Great Lakes operated 279 weekday flights. Service scheduled to and from our seven hubs including; 148 flights at Denver,
8 flights at Albuquerque, 8 flights at Phoenix, 24 flights at Kansas City, MO, 8 flights at Milwaukee , 12 flights at Ontario, CA. and 12 flights at
Billings, MT.

Beginning April 7, 2010, Great Lakes route map, consisting of current scheduled service and recently awarded Essential Air Service
communities, will be as follows:
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We frequently modify our routes. For a current map of routes being flown, please visit our website at www.flvgreatlakes.com.
Marketing

Our services are marketed primarily by means of our internet website, global distributions systems (travel agencies and travel agent websites),
our reservation call center and seat capacity made available through our code share agreements. Our promotional programs emphasize our close
affiliation with our code share partners and, in particular, the opportunity for our passengers to participate in related customer service benefits,
such as frequent flyer programs.

Yield Management

‘We monitor our inventory and pricing of available seats utilizing yield management techniques. These processes enable our revenue control
analysts to examine our past traffic and pricing trends, and to estimate the optimal number of seats to make available for sale at various fares.
The analysts then monitor each flight to adjust seat allocations and booking levels, with the objective of maximizing total revenue for each
flight.

Charter, Freight and Contract Service

Great Lakes uses its Beechcraft 1900Ds and Embraer Brasilia aircraft to provide charter services to private individuals, corporations and athletic
teams. We also carry freight and small packages on most of our scheduled flights and provide contract services for other airlines. Combined
revenues from our charter flights, freight and contract services were 1.5%, 1.0%, and 0.7% of our total revenues for the years ended

December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.

Seasonality

Seasonal factors, related to weather conditions and changes in passenger demand, generally affect our monthly passenger enplanements. We
have historically shown a higher level of passenger enplanements in the May through October period as compared with the November through
April period for many of the cities served. These seasonal factors have generally resulted in reduced revenues, lower operating income, and less
cash flow for us during the November through April period. As a result of such factors, our revenues and earnings have shown a corresponding
increase during the May through October period. Essential Air Service revenues are generated under subsidy per departure rates established by
the DOT and we realize revenue as departures are performed. Inherently, our EAS revenues are not affected by seasonality.

Competition

Great Lakes competes for passenger traffic with regional and major air carriers and ground transportation. We also compete with other regional
air carriers to receive EAS subsidies for providing air service to small communities. Our competition from other air carriers varies from location
to location and, in certain areas, comes from regional and major carriers who serve airports in close proximity to destinations we serve.

Aircraft

As of March 1, 2010, our fleet consisted of 32 Beechcraft Model 1900D 19-passenger aircraft and six Embraer Brasilia Model 120 30-passenger
aircraft.
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Beechcraft 1900D Aircraft. The 19 passenger Beechcraft 1900D aircraft are pressurized and weather radar equipped, and offer a 310-mile per
hour cruising speed.

Embraer Brasilia Aircraft. The 30-passenger Embraer Brasilia aircraft are pressurized, weather radar equipped, configured with lavatories,
staffed with a flight attendant, and offer a 330-mile per hour cruising speed.

A summary of our operating aircraft as of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 is as follows:

2009 2008 2007
Beechcraft Embraer Beechcraft Embraer Beechcraft Embraer
1900D Brasilia 1900D Brasilia 1900D Brasilia
Owned 25 4 25 4 25 4
Operating leases 7 2 3 2 2
32 6 28 6 25 6

As of March 1, 2010, the average age of our aircraft was approximately 15 years.
Maintenance

Federal Aviation Administration (the FAA )-approved and Great Lakes-developed maintenance programs require periodic inspection and
maintenance of commercial aircraft. We perform our maintenance and inspection of our aircraft and engines, with the exception of engine
overhauls. The heavy maintenance bases are located in Cheyenne, WY, Farmington, NM and Williston, ND. Line maintenance is also performed
in Denver, CO and Phoenix, AZ. Parts inventories are maintained at these locations to promote the mechanical dispatch reliability of the fleet.
We also keep an inventory of spare engines and propellers for our fleet to allow for minimal downtime during major overhauls. We operate a
FAA certified repair station utilizing company-trained mechanics and repair personnel to perform overhaul and repair of selected aircraft
components for our fleet of Beechcraft 1900D and Embraer Brasilia EMB-120 aircraft.

Great Lakes has a Fleet Management Program™ contract with Pratt & Whitney Canada under which P&WC supplies us with certain engine
maintenance services for certain Beechcraft 1900D aircraft through June 30, 2011.

Fuel

We expect to continue to be able to obtain fuel in quantities sufficient to meet our future requirements. We contract, both through intermediaries
and directly with refiners, for the purchase of a significant portion of our aircraft fuel requirements. However, standard industry contracts
generally do not provide protection against fuel price increases and do not ensure availability of supply. Accordingly, an increase in the cost of
fuel, if not accompanied by an equivalent increase in passenger revenues or subsidies, could have a material adverse impact on our future
operating results. During 2009, our average price of fuel, including taxes and into plane service fees, was $2.29 per gallon, as compared to $3.58
in 2008 and $2.76 in 2007. Based on rates of consumption for 2009, a one cent increase or decrease in the per gallon price of fuel would increase
or decrease our fuel expense by approximately $120,000 annually.
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Liquidity and Financing
Raytheon Aircraft Credit Corporation

Our primary creditor is Raytheon Aircraft Credit Corporation ( Raytheon ). In the first quarter of 2007, we renegotiated the debt owed on 25
Beech 1900D aircraft and issued 25 amended and restated promissory notes (the Aircraft Notes ), each secured by an amended security
agreement covering the related aircraft. Each of the Aircraft Notes had an original principal amount of $2,116,574, for a total amount of
$52,914,343, bears interest at a fixed rate of 6.75% per annum, and provides for monthly payments with interest in arrears. At December 31,
2009 the principal balance outstanding on these Aircraft Notes was $40,368,314. The Aircraft Notes mature on June 30, 2011, at which time a
final payment of $1,306,675 is due for each aircraft or $32,666,871 for all 25 Beech 1900D aircraft. We will need to refinance the obligation
with Raytheon, generate enough cash from operations to repay the obligation, secure alternative sources of financing with which to repay
Raytheon, raise additional capital sufficient to repay Raytheon, or achieve any combination of the foregoing that might be required to satisfy the
terms of the Aircraft Notes.

In the first quarter of 2007, we also renegotiated our Senior Note with Raytheon which is secured by four Embraer Brasalia aircraft, as well as
all other assets of the Company. The Senior Note had an original principal amount of $13,174,755 and bears interest at a fixed rate of 7.00%.
Interest on the Senior Note is payable monthly in arrears on the last day of each month. At December 31, 2009 the principal outstanding balance
on the Senior Note was $9,466,437. The Senior Note provides for quarterly payments of principal on June 30, September 30, and December 30
each year until the note fully amortizes and matures on December 30, 2015.

In the fourth quarter of 2008, Great Lakes leased three Beechcraft 1900D aircraft (with attached engines) from Raytheon for a term of three
years. During 2009, four additional Beechcraft 1900D aircraft (three without attached engines and one with attached engines) were leased from
Raytheon for a term of three years.

We are dependent on cash generated from operations to provide for the debt service and lease requirements related to the Raytheon debt and
lease obligations.

For additional information regarding the our arrangements with Raytheon, see Item 7, Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operation Liquidity and Capital Resources and Contractual Obligations and Notes 4 and 6 to the Company s financial
statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Employees

At March 1, 2010, the Company had 778 full-time and 397 part-time active employees, as compared to 784 full-time and 430 part-time active
employees at March 1, 2009.

The Company s pilots are represented by the United Transportation Union ( UTU ). In May 2006, the Company and the pilots agreed to binding
arbitration to achieve a new three-year labor agreement. On September 16, 2006, the arbitrator ruled on terms that resulted in a new labor
agreement. The Company and the UTU are currently engaged in negotiations over the terms of a new pilot agreement.

The Company s flight attendants are also represented by the United Transportation Union, and the Company s agreement with the flight
attendants became amendable on April 1, 2002. The Company and the flight attendants are currently engaged in contract mediation under the
auspices of the National Mediation Board.

The Company s mechanics and maintenance clerks are represented by the International Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers
( IAM ). The collective bargaining agreements between the Company and
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the clerks and mechanics represented by IAM, District 143, became amendable in 2002 and 2005, respectively. In August of 2007,
approximately sixteen months after collective bargaining sessions had ended, the IAM invoked National Mediation Board assistance.

In 2003, the Company s dispatchers voted to be represented by the International Brotherhood of Teamsters. Negotiations with the dispatchers are
not active at the present time.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table provides information with respect to the Company s executive officers as of March 1, 2010.

Name Age Title

Douglas G. Voss 55 Chairman of the Board of Directors and President
Charles R. Howell IV 52 Chief Executive Officer

Michael O. Matthews 53 Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Michael L. Tuinstra 56 Treasurer

Douglas G. Voss. Mr. Voss co-founded the Company in 1979 and served in the position of Chief Executive Officer from the Company s
inception until December 31, 2002. Mr. Voss has served as a director of the Company since the Company s inception and became Chairman of
the Board of Directors on December 31, 2002. Mr. Voss was initially licensed as a private pilot in 1974 and today holds both an Airline
Transport Pilot Certificate and an Airframe and Powerplant Mechanic Certificates. Mr. Voss is a graduate of Colorado Aero Tech. Mr. Voss has
previously served the Company in the FAA Air Carrier Certificate required operational control positions of Director of Operations and Director
of Maintenance.

Charles R. Howell IV. Mr. Howell became the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on December 31, 2002. Mr. Howell served as Chief
Operating Officer from August 2002 until December 31, 2002. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Howell was the President and Chief Executive
Officer of Corporate Airlines, Inc., a Nashville-based airline that he co-founded in 1996.

Michael O. Matthews. Mr. Matthews became the Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company on March 28, 2005.

Mr. Matthews joined the Company in November 2004 as Vice President of Finance. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Matthews was employed
as Director of Treasury for Budget Group, Inc. Prior to joining Budget Group, Inc. in 2000, Mr. Matthews held management positions in the
financial services industry including Newcourt Financial, MetLife Capital, Sanwa Business Credit and Societe Generale Financial Corporation.

Michael L. Tuinstra. Mr. Tuinstra became the Company s Treasurer in January 2002. From August 1998 to January 2002, Mr. Tuinstra served
as the Company s Director of Purchasing and Inventory Control. From August 1998 until April 1999, Mr. Tuinstra was the Company s budget and
financial analyst.

Regulation

In accordance with the provisions of the Federal Aviation Act of 1958, as amended (the 1958 Act), we are an air carrier subject to regulation by
the DOT, primarily with respect to economic matters. As a commuter air carrier, we are licensed under Part 298 of the Economic Regulations of
the DOT.

We hold an air carrier operating certificate issued by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) pursuant to Part 121 of the FAA s regulations.
To ensure compliance with its regulations, the FAA requires that an airline obtain an operating certificate and operations specifications for each
particular aircraft and type of operations conducted by the carrier, all of which are subject to suspension or revocation for cause. As a result, we
are subject to the jurisdiction of the FAA with respect to our operations, aircraft maintenance, and safety related matters, including, but not
limited to, equipment, ground facilities, dispatch, communications, training, weather observation, flight personnel, and other matters affecting air
safety.
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The Deregulation Act of 1978 eliminated many regulatory constraints so that airlines became free to set fares and, with limited exceptions, to
establish domestic routes without the necessity of seeking government approval. The DOT is still authorized to establish consumer protection
regulations in order to prohibit certain pricing practices, mandate conditions of carriage, and make ongoing determinations of a carrier s fitness,
willingness, and ability to provide air transportation properly and lawfully. The DOT also has the power to bring proceedings to enforce its
regulations under the 1958 Act and seek penalties, including the assessment of civil penalties, the revocation of operating authority, and criminal
sanctions.

The Aviation and Transportation Security Act requires the adoption of certain security measures by airlines and airports, including the screening
of passengers and baggage. The security measures are being partially funded by a per flight segment tax on tickets. We are responsible for
certain security costs above this level.

We are subject to the jurisdiction and regulations of the Federal Communications Commission regarding the use of our radio facilities. In
addition, local governments and authorities in certain markets have adopted regulations governing various aspects of aircraft operations,
including noise abatement, curfews, and use of airport facilities. We believe that we are in compliance with all such regulations.

We are subject to regulation under various environmental laws and regulations, including the Clean Air Act, the Clean Water Act and
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980. In addition, many state and local governments have adopted
environmental laws and regulations to which our operations are subject.

Insurance

Great Lakes carries the types and amounts of insurance that are required by the DOT and are customary in the regional airline industry,
including coverage for public liability, property damage, aircraft loss or damage, baggage and cargo liability, and workers compensation.

As a result of the September 11 terrorist attacks, aviation insurers have significantly increased premiums for all aviation coverage, while
dramatically reducing the amount of coverage available for war-risk occurrences. In response to the reduction in coverage, the Air
Transportation Safety and System Stabilization Act (the Stabilization Act) provided U.S. air carriers with the option to purchase certain war-risk
liability insurance from the United States government on an interim basis at rates that are more favorable than those available in the private
market. We have purchased this coverage and anticipate renewing it for as long as the coverage is available from the United States government.
The airline and insurance industries, together with the United States and other governments, are continuing to evaluate both the cost of aviation
insurance and options for providing insurance coverage. We anticipate that we will follow industry practices with respect to sources of
insurance. We believe our insurance is adequate as to amounts and risks covered. There can be no assurance, however, that the limits of our
insurance will be sufficient to cover any catastrophic loss, or that we will be able to renew insurance at commercially reasonable rates.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should consider carefully the risks described below and the other information
included or incorporated by reference into this annual report, including our financial statements and the related notes, before deciding to invest
in our common stock. The risks described below may not be the only risks we face. Additional risks that we do not yet know of or that we
currently do not deem material may also impair our business operations. If any of the events or circumstances described in the following risk
factors actually occur, or if any unforeseen risk develops, our business, financial condition and results of operations could suffer, the trading
price of our stock could decline, and you could lose part or all of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business

Airline industry conditions constantly change, and negative economic conditions in the United States may materially and adversely affect
our business and results of operations.

The airline industry is significantly affected by general economic conditions, and the global economic recession has resulted in weaker demand
for air travel in general. During recent recessions, most airlines have reduced fares in an effort to increase traffic and overall revenues. Economic
and competitive conditions in the airline industry have contributed to a number of airline bankruptcies in recent years. A worsening of current
economic conditions, or an extended period of recession, whether nationally or regionally, would have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, operating results and cash flows.

We depend on Essential Air Service revenue, which is based on short-term awards.

We receive Essential Air Service ( EAS ) revenue as compensation for essential air service provided by us to smaller communities. Our
dependence on such revenue has grown in that we received $61.3 million of EAS revenue for the twelve month period ending December 31,
2009 representing approximately 50% of our total operating revenue, compared to $39.3 million of EAS revenue or approximately 34% of our
total operating revenue, for the twelve month period ending December 31, 2008. We expect EAS revenue to increase, in the near term, as a
percentage of our revenue due to the increased number of EAS awards for relatively lower load factor EAS markets. The total amount of EAS
revenue ultimately received by us over an extended period is determined by, among other things, overall funding levels of the EAS program by
the U.S. Congress (which could be reduced), competitive bids by other carriers (which could cause us to lose EAS revenue to competitors), and
our ability to optimize our schedules. EAS revenue awards generally have a term of two years. The U.S. Department of Transportation, which
administers the EAS program, has the right to cancel EAS revenue awards if it deems that the communities served by such arrangements are no
longer eligible. In addition, Congress could choose to reduce or eliminate the EAS program, in which case we would be required to seek other
markets. The loss or the reduction of EAS revenue would adversely affect our business, financial condition, operating results and cash flows.

We depend on connecting capacity at our hubs and the activities of our code share partners affect that capacity.

Our business depends on, and is sensitive to, events affecting the airline industry capacity at our connecting hubs. The operations of other
airlines with substantial business at those hubs, therefore, impact our business. For example, our code share partners United Airlines and Frontier
Airlines operate a large percentage of the flights at Denver International Airport, our largest hub. Changes in their business plans or models,
employee strikes or job actions, or significant curtailment of services could have an adverse effect on our financial results.

Our code share agreement with United Airlines expires in November 2010. We can make no assurances that this agreement will be renewed, or
if renewed, at substantially the same terms as the current agreement. We estimate that approximately 39% of our connecting passenger traffic
utilizes the United Airlines code share product line. For the year ending December 31, 2009, approximately 13.7% ($16.7 million) of our total
revenue was generated from tickets purchased and fees paid which were associated with the United Airlines designator code. We are the only
carrier serving the vast majority of the non-hub destinations we serve. We can make no assurances that absent a code share agreement with
United Airlines, that passengers wishing to travel to these destinations would either: (i) purchase travel through our interline e-ticketing
agreements with United Airlines, Frontier Airlines, Continental Airlines or U.S. Airways, (ii) purchase their travel by utilizing our Frontier
Airlines code share sales channel, or (iii) purchase their travel directly through our own sales channels. Therefore, if the United Airlines code
share agreement is not renewed, we can not predict the effect this would have on our future total operating revenue.
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In addition, Frontier Airlines exited Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings on October 1, 2009 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Republic Airways
Holdings. We cannot predict what effect this change in ownership of Frontier Airlines will have on our code share relationship and our related
operating revenue. In addition, if Frontier Airlines or any successor is unable to achieve financial viability, our business, financial condition,
operating results and cash flows would be adversely affected.

We have a significant amount of debt and other contractual obligations, including a $32.7 million balloon payment due to Raytheon in June
2011.

The airline business is capital intensive and, as a result, many airline companies are highly leveraged. As of December 31, 2009, we had
approximately $51.8 million in total long-term debt obligations. During 2009 and 2008, our mandatory debt service payments totaled $6.1
million and $6.1 million, respectively, and our mandatory aircraft lease payments totaled approximately $2.1 million and $1.0 million,
respectively. We have significant future contractual payment obligations for leased aircraft, which aggregated approximately $5.5 million at
December 31, 2009. We cannot assure you that our operations will generate sufficient cash flow to make such payments, or that we will be able
to obtain financing to acquire the additional aircraft or make other capital expenditures necessary for expansion. We are subject to various
financial covenants under our restructuring agreement with Raytheon. If we default under our loans or lease agreements, Raytheon, our principal
creditor, has available extensive remedies, including, without limitation, repossession, foreclosure and/or sale of substantially all of our aircraft
and other assets.

Even if we are able to timely service our debt, the size of our long-term debt and lease obligations could negatively affect our business, financial
condition, operating results and cash flows in many ways, including:

increasing the cost, or limiting the availability of, additional financing for working capital, acquisitions or other purposes;

limiting the ways in which we can use our cash flow, much of which may have to be used to satisfy debt and lease obligations; and

adversely affecting our ability to respond to changing business or economic conditions.
In addition, our aircraft notes secured by 25 Beechcraft 1900D aircraft mature on June 30, 2011, at which time a $32.7 million balloon payment
is due. We cannot assure you that we will be able to refinance the obligation with Raytheon, generate enough cash from operations to repay the
obligation, secure alternative sources of financing with which to repay Raytheon, raise additional capital sufficient to repay Raytheon, or achieve
any combination of the foregoing that might be required to satisty the terms of the aircraft notes.

An ownership change under IRS Section 382 could reduce, eliminate, or defer the utilization of our net operating loss carryforwards.

At December 31, 2009, we had estimated net operating loss carryforwards ( NOLs ) of $56.6 million for federal income tax purposes that expire
beginning in 2019 and continuing through 2026. Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code ( Section 382 ) imposes limitations on a corporation s
ability to utilize NOLs if it experiences an ownership change . Generally, an ownership change occurs if one or more shareholders, each of whom
owns 5% or more in value of a corporation s stock, increase their percentage ownership, in the aggregate, by more than 50% over the lowest
percentage of stock owned by such shareholders at any time during the preceding three-year period.

If we were to undergo an ownership change as defined in Section 382, our NOLs generated prior to the ownership change would be subject to
annual limitations, which could reduce, eliminate, or defer the utilization of these losses. Our NOLs available to offset future taxable income
could be severely limited and the NOLs may expire as a result of the limitation. If we were to experience an ownership change we may have to
reduce or eliminate our deferred tax assets, incur future income taxes payable that could require cash payments or a combination of both. The
effect could be materially adverse to our financial statements and cash flows.

At this time, we cannot predict if, or to what extent, the sale of the 5,371,980 shares which are offered by Raytheon under our registration
statement on Form S-1 which became effective on October 20, 2009 or other future transactions in our shares would constitute a change in
ownership as defined by Section 382, and, therefore, affect the availability of our NOLs.
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Our operations could be negatively impacted by terrorist events or war activity.

Our operations are sensitive to changes in the economy and airline industry that are caused by, or related to, past and future terrorist attacks.
Such changes include, but are not limited to, the impact of additional airline and security charges on our costs, reduced customer demand for
travel, the cost and availability of war-risk and other aviation insurance (including the federal government s provision of third party war-risk
coverage). War or other military action by the United States or other countries could have a significant effect on passenger traffic and passenger
revenue, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition, operating results and cash flows.

We compete for passenger traffic and EAS revenue with other air carriers and ground transportation.

We compete for passenger traffic with regional and major air carriers and ground transportation. We also compete with other regional air carriers
to receive EAS revenue for providing air service to small communities. Our competition from other air carriers varies from location to location
and, in certain areas, comes from regional and major carriers who serve the same airports or larger airports which are in close proximity to some
of the destinations we serve.

Fuel prices or disruptions in fuel supplies could have a material adverse effect on us.

Expenditures for fuel and related taxes represent one of the largest costs of operating our business. Our operations depend on the availability of
jet fuel supplies, and our results are significantly impacted by changes in jet fuel prices, which have been volatile in the last 24 months. Jet fuel
prices decreased in 2009 relative to the record levels in mid-2008. However, in the last three months, jet fuel prices have steadily increased. We
do not participate in fuel hedging instruments. Fuel prices could increase dramatically and supplies could be disrupted as a result of many factors
outside of our control. Further volatility in jet fuel prices or disruptions in fuel supplies could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations, financial condition and liquidity.

Any labor disruption by our employees or those of our code share partners would adversely affect our ability to conduct our business.

All of our pilots, flight attendants, mechanics and maintenance clerks, and dispatchers are represented by unions. Collectively, these employees
represented approximately 40% of our workforce as of December 31, 2009. If we are unable to reach agreement with any of our unionized work
groups on the terms of their collective bargaining agreements when they are up for renewal, we may be subject to work interruptions and/or
stoppages, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition, operating results and cash flows. A labor disruption or labor strike at
either of our code share partners could have the same effects.

Our business could be harmed if we lose the services of our key personnel.

Our business depends upon the efforts of our Chairman of the Board and President, Douglas G. Voss, and our other key management and
operating personnel. We depend on the experience and industry knowledge of these individuals to execute our business plans. If we experience
turnover in our leadership and other key employees, our business, financial condition, operating results and cash flows could be materially
adversely impacted.

We are at risk of losses stemming from an accident involving any of our aircrafft.

If one of our aircraft were to be involved in a serious accident, we could be exposed to significant liability for loss of life or other damages.
Though we carry insurance against liability resulting from accidents, we cannot assure you of its adequacy in all circumstances. An accident
could result in decreased revenues which could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, operating results and cash flows. In
addition, depending on the circumstances, any accident involving a particular aircraft of the type that we operate could result in a negative
perception of that type of aircraft by air travelers. This could adversely affect our revenue whether or not our company was actually involved in
the accident.

The airline industry is subject to extensive government regulation, and new regulations, or changes in interpretations of current regulations,
could increase our operating costs.

Airlines are subject to extensive regulatory and legal compliance requirements that result in significant costs. For instance, the Federal Aviation
Administration ( FAA ) from time to time issues directives and other regulations relating to the maintenance and operation of aircraft that may
necessitate significant expenditures. Other laws, regulations, taxes and airport rates and charges have also been imposed from time to time that
significantly increase the cost of airline operations
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and/or reduce our revenue. For example, the Aviation and Transportation Security Act, which became law in November 2001, mandated the
federalization of certain airport security procedures and imposed additional security requirements on airports and airlines, most of which are
funded by a per ticket tax on passengers and a tax on airlines. We incur substantial costs in maintaining our current certifications and otherwise
complying with the laws, rules and regulations to which we are subject. We expect to continue incurring expenses to comply with the FAA s
regulations, as well as regulation by states, airports and municipalities that have jurisdiction over our operations.

In addition, proposed laws, regulations, taxes and user fees, if enacted, may increase our operating expenses and otherwise affect our business.
Examples of this are the recent proposals to impose substantial user fees on aviation (including airlines) to fund air traffic control system costs
and upgrades to that system. Future regulatory action concerning climate change and aircraft emissions also could have a significant effect on
the airline industry, including the potential for increased fuel costs, carbon taxes or fees or a requirement to purchase carbon credits. We cannot
predict whether these or other new regulations may be imposed on airlines and we cannot assure that laws or regulations enacted in the future
will not materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, operating results and cash flows.

We rely on technology and automated systems to operate our business, and a failure of these technologies or systems, or failures by their
operators, could harm our business.

We depend on technology and automated systems to operate our business, including our computerized airline reservations system, our
telecommunication systems, our website, our maintenance and engineering systems, our flight dispatching and crew management systems, our
flight scheduling systems, and other technologies and systems. Disruption in, changes to, or a breach of, these systems could result in the loss of
important data, negatively affect our customer service, increase our expenses, delay or impede our flight and related operations, or otherwise
adversely impact our business. We may be vulnerable to external interruption in technology infrastructure on which we depend, such as power,
telecommunications or the internet, whether due to large-scale events, such as natural disasters, or directed actions, including terrorist attacks
and system security attacks seeking to compromise or obtain financial data, infect systems with computer viruses or impair or disrupt
functionality through denial of services.

New production of both types of aircraft which we fly has ceased.

As of December 31, 2009, we operated a fleet of 32 Beechcraft Model 1900D 19-passenger aircraft and 6 Embraer Brasilia Model 120
30-passenger aircraft. These aircraft types continue to receive factory parts, manufacturing and engineering support. In the future, we may
experience increased maintenance costs as our fleet ages.

Risks Related to Our Securities
We are controlled by two principal stockholders.

Raytheon, our principal creditor, owns 5,371,980 shares of our outstanding common stock, representing approximately 37.6% of our outstanding
shares. Raytheon acquired the shares in consideration for concessions granted by Raytheon to our company pursuant to a restructuring
agreement we entered into in 2002.

Our Chairman of the Board and President, Douglas G. Voss, beneficially owns or controls 5,581,000 shares of our outstanding common stock,
including shares owned by Gayle R. Brandt, representing approximately 39.0% of our outstanding shares. Ms. Brandt owned 1,870,753 shares of
our common stock, as of March 1, 2010. Pursuant to a marital dissolution stipulation and property settlement, Ms. Brandt granted to Mr. Voss an
irrevocable proxy to vote her shares of our common stock until June 28, 2010. Mr. Voss and Ms. Brandt have also entered into a shareholder
buy-sell agreement with respect to such shares. The term of the agreement is until June 28, 2010 or until such time as Ms. Brandt does not own
any shares or our company is dissolved or liquidated. Pursuant to the agreement, Ms. Brandt has the right to require Mr. Voss to purchase her
shares for a share price to be negotiated or at market price, as defined in the agreement, up to a total purchase amount not to exceed $50,000 per
year. Mr. Voss has a right of first refusal to purchase for up to the market price any shares that Ms. Brandt desires to sell. The agreement also
provides Mr. Voss the option to purchase any shares at any time during the term of the agreement for up to the market price of shares of
common stock. The agreement provides that in any transaction in which Mr. Voss sells greater than 5% of his shares, Mr. Voss has the right to
compel Ms. Brandt to sell all, or an equal amount of, the shares held by her in such transaction on the same terms as the shares of Mr. Voss. In
turn, Ms. Brandt has the right to have her shares included by Mr. Voss in any such transaction on a pro rata basis. The agreement also provides
Mr. Voss with the right to purchase the shares at the market price upon the death of Ms. Brandt or upon an involuntary disposition of the shares
held by Ms. Brandt. After this shareholder buy-sell agreement expires on
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June 28, 2010, the shares owned by Ms. Brandt will no longer be subject to the foregoing contractual restrictions, and she will be able to sell her
shares, subject to the restrictions applicable to affiliates under Rule 144 or pursuant to other applicable exemptions.

As a result of the above-referenced ownership, Raytheon and Mr. Voss may be able to control our company and direct our affairs, including the
election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions. This concentration of ownership could also delay, defer or prevent a
change in control of our company, and make some transactions more difficult or impossible without their support. These transactions might
include proxy contests, tender offers, open market purchase programs or other share purchases that could give our stockholders the opportunity
to realize a premium over the then-prevailing market price of our securities. As a result, this concentration of ownership could depress the price
of our securities.

The limited market for our securities could make trading more difficult or more expensive.

Trading in our common stock is conducted on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board, which was established for securities that do not meet
NASDAQ listing requirements. We cannot assure you of an active public market for our common stock. Consequently, trading our common
stock may be more difficult because of lower trading volumes, transaction delays, and reduced security analyst and news media coverage. These
factors also could contribute to lower prices and larger spreads in the bid and ask prices for our common stock than might otherwise prevail.

The market price of our common stock may be subject to wide fluctuations.

The price of our common stock may fluctuate, depending on many factors, some of which are beyond our control and may not be related to our
operating performance. As a result of this volatility, investors may not be able to sell their common stock at or above the price paid for the stock.
The price of our common stock will be determined in the marketplace and may be influenced by many factors, including:

price and volume fluctuations in the overall stock market from time to time;

significant volatility in the market price and trading volume of companies in the airline industry;

actual or anticipated changes in our earnings or fluctuations in our operating results or in the expectations of financial market
analysts;

regulatory changes affecting the airline industry;

investor perceptions of our industry, in general, and our company, in particular;

passenger concerns about the safety of air travel, in general, and public perceptions of our company, in particular;

the operating and stock performance of comparable companies;

general economic conditions and trends;

major catastrophic events;
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loss of external funding sources;

sales of large blocks of our stock or sales by insiders; or

departures of key personnel.
A decline in the market price of our common stock could cause you to lose some or all of your investment and may adversely impact our ability
to attract and retain employees and raise capital. In addition, stockholders may initiate securities class action lawsuits if the market price of our
stock drops significantly, which may cause us to incur substantial costs and could divert the time and attention of our management.

We may be exposed to potential risks relating to our internal control over financial reporting and our ability to have those controls
remediated timely.

Under SEC rules implemented under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the independent registered public accounting firm auditing a public
company s financial statements must attest to and report on the operating effectiveness of a public company s internal control over financial
reporting. Under current SEC rules, we will be required to include an auditor s attestation report in our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2010.
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In the event we identify control deficiencies that we cannot remediate in a timely manner, or if we are unable to receive an unqualified
attestation report from our independent registered public accounting firm with respect to our internal control over financial reporting, investors
and others may lose confidence in the reliability of our financial statements, and the trading price of our common stock and our ability to obtain
any necessary equity or debt financing could suffer.

A substantial number of shares are eligible for sale by our current investors and the sale of those shares could adversely affect our stock
price.

If our existing common stockholders sell, or attempt to sell, substantial amounts of common stock in the public market, the market price of our
common stock could fall. We have registered for resale 5,371,980 shares of common stock under a registration statement on Form S-1 that was
originally declared effective on October 20, 2009. In addition, after the June 2010 expiration of the shareholder buy-sell agreement between
Ms. Brandt and Mr. Voss, Ms. Brandt may sell her 1,870,753 shares, subject to the availability of an appropriate exemption from registration
such as Rule 144. If these shares are sold in the public market, or if it is perceived that they will be sold, the trading price of our common stock
could be adversely affected.

The issuance of additional equity securities in a future financing could require approval from Raytheon.

If we were to issue additional equity securities in the future, other than pursuant to certain benefits plans and other excepted issuances, such
issuance would require approval from Raytheon under our 2007 restructuring agreement. Raytheon has such rights while debt is outstanding
under our 2007 restructuring agreement. In addition, Raytheon has certain rights to purchase a specified number of shares in any new offering,
subject to certain exceptions. While we have no plans to issue securities in a manner that would require the consent of Raytheon, we could elect
to do so in the future. Such issuances would dilute the holdings of existing common stockholders.

We do not anticipate paying cash dividends on our shares of common stock in the foreseeable future.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our shares of common stock. We intend to retain any future earnings to fund the operation
and expansion of our business and, therefore, we do not anticipate paying cash dividends on our shares of common stock in the foreseeable
future. In addition, we are prohibited from paying dividends without Raytheon s consent under our 2007 restructuring agreement. As a result,
capital appreciation, if any, of our common stock will be the sole source of gain for investors in our common stock for the foreseeable future.

Provisions in our charter documents, including our ability to issue preferred stock without stockholder approval, and provisions of lowa law
could delay or prevent the acquisition of our company by a third party.

Our articles of incorporation authorize the issuance of shares of preferred stock. Our board of directors, without any action by our stockholders,
is authorized to designate and issue preferred stock in such classes or series as it deems appropriate and establish the rights and privileges of
such shares, including liquidation and voting rights. Our ability to designate and issue preferred stock having preferential rights over our
common stock could adversely affect the voting power and other rights of holders of common stock. The existence of this preferred stock could
make it more difficult or discourage an attempt to obtain control of our company by means of a tender offer, merger, proxy contest, or otherwise.
At present, we have no plans to issue any preferred stock.

Other provisions of our articles of incorporation and bylaws and of Iowa law could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire our
company or to change management, even if doing so would be beneficial to our stockholders. For example, Section 409.1110 of the Iowa
Business Corporation Act prohibits publicly held Iowa corporations to which it applies from engaging in a business combination with an
interested stockholder for a period of three years after the date of the transaction in which the person became an interested stockholder unless the
business combination is approved in a prescribed manner. This provision could discourage others from bidding for our common stock and could,
as a result, reduce the likelihood of an increase in our stock price that would otherwise occur if a bidder sought to buy our stock.
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Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

Item 2. PROPERTIES
Aircraft

We operate a total of 38 aircraft consisting of 32 19-passenger Beechcraft 1900D aircraft and six 30-passenger Embraer Brasilia aircraft. The
average age of our fleet is approximately 15 years. Twenty-five of the Beechcraft 1900D aircraft are owned and seven are leased. Four of the
Embraer Brasilia aircraft are owned and two are leased. All of our owned aircraft are pledged as security for our loan agreements with Raytheon.

Ground Facilities
We lease approximately 94,000 square feet of space for maintenance, operations, and administration in Cheyenne, Wyoming.

On September 1, 2008 we entered into a lease for an approximate 120,000 square foot hangar and aircraft maintenance facility in Farmington,
NM.

At March 1, 2010 we leased gate, terminal and ramp facilities at 60 airports where ticketing and passenger loading and unloading are handled by
Great Lakes personnel.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We are a party to ongoing legal claims and assertions arising in the ordinary course of business. Management believes that the resolution of
these matters will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Item 4. (Removed and Reserved.)
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PART II

Item S. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS, AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our Common Stock is traded under the symbol GLUX.OB on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board (the OTCBB ). The following table sets forth

the range of high and low sale prices for our Common Stock for each of the fiscal quarters for the past two years as reported on the OTCBB.

These prices represent inter-dealer prices without adjustments for mark-up, mark-down, or commission and do not necessarily reflect actual

transactions.

Stock Quotations High Low
2009:

First quarter $1.90 $1.02
Second quarter 1.85 1.10
Third quarter 1.59 0.25
Fourth quarter 1.55 1.00
2008:

First quarter $2.40 $2.03
Second quarter 245 2.00
Third quarter 2.50 1.85
Fourth quarter 2.30 1.00

As of March 1, 2010, we had approximately 311 record holders of our Common Stock.

The transfer agent for our Common Stock is Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A., 161 North Concord Exchange, South St. Paul, Minnesota
55075-0738, telephone: (651) 450-4064.

We have not paid any dividends on our Common Stock since our initial public offering in January 1994. We expect that, for the foreseeable
future, we will follow a policy of retaining earnings in order to finance the continued development of our business. Payment of dividends is
within the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend, among other factors, upon the earnings, capital requirements, operating and
financial condition of Great Lakes, and any applicable restrictive debt and lease covenants. In addition, under our March 9, 2007 Amended and
Restated Restructuring Agreement with Raytheon, we have agreed not to pay dividends.

There were no sales of unregistered securities of the Company during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009.

See Item 12 with respect to securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans.

Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA

The following statement of operations and balance sheet data as of, and for each of the years in the five-year period ended December 31, 2009
have been derived from our audited financial statements. The financial statements as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and for each of the years
in the three-year period ended December 31, 2009, and the audit report thereon, are included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The following
selected financial data should be read in conjunction with, and are qualified in their entirety by, the financial statements and the notes thereto
included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
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2009

Statement of Operations Data:

Passenger revenues $ 58,737
Public service revenues 61,258
Freight, charter, and other 1,849
Total operating revenues 121,844

Operating expenses:

Salaries, wages and benefits 31,500
Aircraft fuel 26,631
Aircraft maintenance, material, and repairs 16,925
Depreciation and amortization 5,641
Aircraft rental 2,066
Other rentals and landing fees 6,646
Other operating expense 20,490
Total operating expenses 109,899
Operating income 11,945
Interest expense, net (2,160)

Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
Gain on extinguishment of debt and deferred leases

Income before income taxes 9,785
Income tax benefit (expense) (4,003)
Net income $ 5,782

Net income per share:
Basic $ 040
Diluted 0.40

Average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic 14,292
Diluted 14,442

Balance Sheet Data:

2005

$ 53,313
21,861
1,218

76,392

20,282
16,940
10,708
6,316
1,644
4,043
13,177

73,110
3,282

(3,122)
461
560

1,181

$ 1,181

$ 0.08
0.08

14,072
14,283

$ (94,885)
86,479

78,904

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 (9) 2006
(in thousands, except per share and selected operating data)
$ 75,719  $73,283  $62,477
39,250 24,149 23,851
1,187 728 1,286
116,156 98,160 87,614
26,834 22,505 20,993
38,556 24913 19,517
13,774 13,781 11,585
5,606 5,632 5,744
968 620 1,666
5,162 4,225 4,566
18,411 15,949 14,707
109,311 87,625 78,778
6,845 10,535 8,836
(2,336) (2,319) (3,540)
412 10,498
4,509 8,628 15,794
(2,568) 9,585 (115)
$ 1,941 $18,213  $15,679
$ 014 $ 129 §$ 1.11
0.13 1.26 1.09
14,237 14,077 14,072
14,414 14,446 14,380
Working capital (deficit) $ 9647 $ 3,086 $ 3,764 $ (3,462)
Total assets 84,644 86,217 92,049 82,312
Long-term debt (including current installments) and long-term debt
classified as current 51,779 59,411 67,202 75,523
Stockholders equity (deficit) 23,887 17,385 15,364 2,872)
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Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Selected Operating Data (unaudited):
Available seat miles (in thousands) (1) 401,068 360,636 318,524 283,272 280,579
Revenue passenger miles (in thousands) (2) 134,077 154,655 157,144 132,251 117,761
Revenue passengers carried 481,668 569,846 578,773 504,666 443,304
Departures flown 92,517 82,477 68,360 61,806 60,169
Passenger load factor (3) 33.4% 42.9% 49.3% 46.7% 42.0%
Average yield per revenue passenger mile (4) 43.8¢ 49.0¢ 46.6¢ 47.2¢ 45.3¢
Revenue per available seat mile (5) 30.4¢ 32.2¢ 30.8¢ 30.9¢ 27.2¢
Operating cost per available seat mile (6) 27.4¢ 30.3¢ 27.5¢ 27.8¢ 26.1¢
Average passenger fare (7) $ 121.94 $ 132.88 $ 126.62 $ 123.80 $ 120.26
Average passenger trip length (miles) (8) 278 271 272 262 266
Aircraft in service (end of period) 38 34 31 31 29
Destinations served (end of period) 62 59 44 37 37

(1)  Available seat miles or ASMs represent the number of seats available for passengers in scheduled flights multiplied by the number of
scheduled miles those seats are flown.

(2)  Revenue passenger miles represent the number of miles flown by revenue passengers.

(3)  Passenger load factor represents the percentage of seats filled by revenue passengers and is calculated by dividing revenue passenger miles
by available seat miles.

(4)  Average yield per revenue passenger mile represents the average passenger revenue received for each mile a revenue passenger is carried.

(5)  Revenue per available seat mile represents the average total operating revenue received for each available seat mile.

(6) Operating cost per available seat mile represents operating expenses divided by available seat miles.

(7)  Average passenger fare represents passenger revenue divided by the number of revenue passengers carried.

(8)  Average passenger trip length represents revenue passenger miles divided by the number of revenue passengers carried.

(9) Asdiscussed in Note 7 to the Financial Statements, 2007 amounts have been revised to reflect a correction to income taxes.

Item 7. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION
Overview

The discussion and analysis throughout this report contains certain forward-looking terminology such as believes, anticipates, will, and intends
or comparable terminology. Such statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from

those projected. Potential purchasers of Great Lakes securities are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements,

which are qualified in their entirety by the cautions and risks described herein. See Forward-Looking Statements at the front of this report.
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Great Lakes began providing air charter service in 1979, and has provided scheduled passenger service since 1981. We provide scheduled local
services to our hubs under the Great Lakes brand. Connecting code share products are available to both United and Frontier Airlines at selected
hubs. As of March 1, 2010, we are providing passenger service to 60 airports in fifteen states.

Financial Highlights

We had operating revenue of $121.8 million for the year ending December 31, 2009, a 4.8 percent increase compared to operating revenue of
$116.2 million for the year ending December 31, 2008. The increase in operating revenue is due to public service revenue increasing $22.0
million, offset by passenger revenue decreasing $17.0 million. The increase in public service revenue is attributable to our expansion into
additional Essential Air Service ( EAS ) markets in 2008 and 2009. During 2008, at various times during the year, we added a net of 16 EAS
communities served. We realized the annualized impact of the public service revenue associated with the 2008 expansion in 2009. Additionally,
we initiated and terminated EAS service in various markets during 2009, resulting in two more EAS communities served. This expansion in
2008 and 2009, as well as renewing EAS awards for existing communities at then-current market subsidy rates, yielded incremental public
service revenue of $22.0 million in 2009. The $17.0 million decrease in passenger revenue in 2009 can be attributed to (i) a 15.5 percent
(approximately 88,000) decrease in passenger enplanements, and (ii) an 8.2 percent (approximately $11.00) decrease in average fares. The
decrease in passenger enplanements is a function of the reduced demand for air travel experienced by the majority of the airline industry, as a
result of the economic recession, in combination with our transition of capacity to lower load factor EAS markets that have otherwise enplaned
fewer passengers compared to the markets which we have historically served. The effect of the economic recession precipitated an extremely
competitive airfare environment for our code-share partners and other domestic airlines, thereby reducing airfares and yields for our company, as
well as the majority of other domestic airlines. The net effect of the above factors had a significant impact on our revenue mix, which has shifted
to a higher percentage of public service revenue.

We had operating income of $11.9 million for the year ending December 31, 2009, a 75 percent increase compared to operating income of $6.8
million for the year ending December 31, 2008. The increase in operating income is mostly attributable to a reduction in fuel prices resulting in
an $11.9 million decrease in fuel cost in 2009 and a $5.6 million increase in operating revenue. On a year over year comparative basis, the
average per gallon cost of fuel decreased from $3.58 in 2008 to $2.29 in 2009, a decrease of 36.0 percent, or $1.29 per gallon. The effect of the
$1.29 decrease in cost per gallon, excluding the quantity impacts of the increased gallons consumed in 2009, would have caused our fuel
expense to be lower in 2009 by $14.0 million as compared to 2008.

We had net income of $5.8 million for the year ending December 31, 2009, a 205.3 percent increase compared to net income of $1.9 million for
the year ending December 31, 2008. The increase in net income is primarily a result of the decrease in fuel costs as described above.
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Results of Operations

(dollars in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Cents % Increase Cents % Increase Cents
per (decrease) per (decrease) per

Amount ASM from 2008 Amount ASM from 2007 Amount ASM
Operating revenues:
Passenger $ 58,737 22.H% $ 75,719 33% $73,283
Public service 61,258 56.1 39,250 62.5 24,149
Other 1,849 55.8 1,187 63.0 728
Total operating revenues 121,844 4.9% 116,156 18.3% 98,160
Salaries, wages, and benefits 31,500 7.9¢ 17.4% 26,834 7.4¢ 19.2% 22,505 7.1¢
Aircraft fuel 26,631 6.6 (30.9) 38,556  10.7 54.8 24,913 7.8
Aircraft maintenance materials and
component repairs 16,925 4.2 22.9 13,774 3.8 0.1) 13,781 4.3
Depreciation and amortization 5,641 1.4 0.6 5,606 1.6 0.5) 5,632 1.8
Aircraft rental 2,066 0.5 113.4 968 0.3 56.1 620 0.2
Other rentals and landing fees 6,646 1.7 28.7 5,162 1.4 22.2 4,225 1.3
Other operating expense 20,490 5.1 11.3 18,411 5.1 154 15,949 5.0
Total operating expenses 109,899  27.5¢ 0.5% 109,311  30.3¢ 24.7% 87,625 27.5¢
Operating income $ 11,945 $ 6,845 $10,535

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
2009 from 2008 2008 from 2007 2007

Available seat miles (thousands) 401,068 11.2% 360,636 13.2% 318,524
Revenue passenger miles (thousands) 134,077 (13.3)% 154,655 (1.6)% 157,144
Passenger load factor 33.4% 22.1)% 42.9% (13.0)% 49.3%
Average yield per revenue passenger mile 43.8¢ (10.6)% 49.0¢ 5.2% 46.6¢
Revenue per available seat mile 30.4¢ 5.6)% 32.2¢ 4.5% 30.8¢
Cost per Available Seat Mile 27.4¢ (9.6)% 30.3¢ 10.2% 27.5¢

Comparison of 2009 to 2008

Passenger Revenues. Passenger revenues decreased 22.4% from 2008. The decrease in passenger revenues was largely due to the 10.6%
decrease in average yield per revenue passenger mile.

Public Service Revenues. Public service revenues earned through the Essential Air Service program increased 56.1% to $61.3 million in 2009,
as compared to $39.3 million in 2008. The increase in public service revenues was attributable to a net increase of two communities served by us
under the Essential Air Service Program, as well as a full year of results from the net 16 communities added during 2008.

Other Revenues. Other revenues increased 55.8% to $1.8 million in 2009. This increase was mainly due to ground handling services provided to
other carriers who served the same locations in which we had ongoing operations.

Operating Expenses. Total operating expenses increased 0.5%, or $0.6 million from the previous year, primarily related to departure and
capacity growth in short-haul EAS markets. Fuel costs decreased 4.1 cents per ASM, from 10.7 cents per ASM in 2008 to 6.6 cents per ASM in
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2009. These resulted in a decrease in operating expenses per ASM from 30.3 cents in 2008 to 27.4 cents in 2009.

Salaries, wages, and benefits increased 17.4% to $31.5 million, which was primarily attributable to company-wide increases in staffing levels
and hours worked as a result of a 11.2% increase in ASMs and 12.2% increase in departures flown during 2009. The average number of pilots
and other employees increased in 2009 compared to 2008 by 24.2% and 16.3%, respectively.
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Aircraft fuel expense was $26.6 million, or 6.6 cents per ASM, in 2009, a decrease of $11.9 million. In comparison, our aircraft fuel expense for
2008 was $38.6 million, or 10.7 cents per ASM. The average cost of fuel decreased from $3.58 per gallon in 2008 to $2.29 per gallon in 2009.
The effect of the $1.29 decrease in cost per gallon decreased our total fuel cost by $14.0 million in 2009. The 30.9% decrease in our aircraft fuel
expense is attributable to the 36.0% decrease in the average cost of fuel per gallon, partially offset by a 10.1% increase in consumption resulting
from the 11.2% increase in ASMs. At 2009 rates of consumption, a one cent increase or decrease in the per gallon price of fuel will increase or
decrease our fuel expense by approximately $120,000 annually.

Aircraft maintenance, materials, and component repair expense was $16.9 million, or 4.2 cents per ASM, in 2009, an increase of $3.2 million
from 2008. In comparison, our aircraft maintenance, materials, and repairs expense for 2008 was $13.8 million, or 3.8 cents per ASM. The
22.9% increase in 2009 aircraft maintenance was primarily attributable to aircraft component overhaul activity, flight hours used in the Term
Cost Plan™ Agreement (the FMP contract) and increased parts usage associated with the seven additional aircraft placed in service in late 2008
through mid-year 2009.

Depreciation and amortization expense was $5.6 million during 2009 and 2008.

Aircraft rental expense was $2.1 million during 2009, an increase of 113.4% compared to $1.0 million during 2008. The increase was primarily
attributable to the addition of seven 1900D aircraft leases (three aircraft in 2008 and four aircraft in 2009) from Raytheon, offset by the return of
two aircraft which had been leased from another carrier in 2008.

Other rentals and landing fees increased 28.7% to $6.6 million in 2009 from $5.2 million in 2008. The increase in other rentals and landing fees
expenses is mostly attributable to the 12.2% increase in departures flown and additional cities served.

Other operating expenses increased 11.3% in 2009 to $20.5 million, from $18.4 million in 2008. The increase in other operating expenses is
primarily due to an increase of approximately $0.7 million in pilot training and associated lodging expenses as a result of increased capacity.
Other increases include approximately $0.5 million for contract airline handling, $0.4 million for professional services, $0.3 million for contract
maintenance and $0.2 million for other expenses resulting from expanded operations.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $2.2 million during 2009 compared to $2.3 million in 2008 due to declining average debt balances.

Income Tax Expense. We had income tax expense of $4.0 million in 2009 compared to $2.6 million in 2008. The provision for income taxes, as
a percentage of income before taxes, decreased to 40.9 percent in 2009 from 56.9 percent in 2008. The 2009 rate includes $0.1 million for the
impact of changes in rates due to state apportionment of income factor changes, offset by $0.1 million for changes related to the release of
valuation allowances on state NOLs which are now expected to be utilized prior to expiration. The higher 2008 rate included a $0.5 million (17.9
% of the effective tax rate) tax expense related to NOLs expiring unused.

As of December 31, 2009, we had approximately $56.6 million of federal net operating loss carryforwards, and $23.2 million in state net
operating loss carryforwards, which will be available to offset future taxable income. A valuation allowance of approximately $513,000
remained at December 31, 2009 for state net operating loss carryforwards that may not be utilized before they expire.
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Comparison of 2008 to 2007

Passenger Revenues. Passenger revenues increased 3.3% from 2007. The increase in passenger revenues was largely due to the 5.2% increase in
average yield per revenue passenger mile.

Public Service Revenues. Public service revenues earned through the Essential Air Service program increased 62.5% to $39.3 million in 2008,
as compared to $24.1 million in 2007. The increase in public service revenues was attributable to the net increase of 16 communities served by
us under the Essential Air Service Program.

Other Revenues. Other revenues increased 63.0% to $1.2 million in 2008. This increase was mainly due to contract ground handling for another
carrier and increased cargo revenues.

Operating Expenses. Total operating expenses increased 24.7%, or $21.7 million from the previous year, primarily related to departure and
capacity growth in short haul EAS markets. Fuel increased 2.9 cents per ASM, from 7.8 cents per ASM in 2007 to 10.7 cents per ASM in 2008
which contributed to the increase in operating expenses per ASM from 27.5 cents in 2007 to 30.3 cents in 2008.

Salaries, wages, and benefits increased 19.2% to $26.8 million, which was primarily attributable to company-wide increases in staffing levels
and hours worked as a result of a 13.2% increase in ASMs and 20.7% increase in departures flown during 2008. The average number of pilots
and other employees increased in 2008 compared to 2007 by 13.0% and 16.7%, respectively.

Aircraft fuel expense was $38.6 million, or 10.7 cents per ASM, in 2008, an increase of $13.6 million. In comparison, our aircraft fuel expense
for 2007 was $24.9 million, or 7.8 cents per ASM. The average cost of fuel increased from $2.76 per gallon in 2007 to $3.58 per gallon in 2008.
The effect of the $0.82 increase in cost per gallon increased total fuel cost by $7.6 million in 2008. The 54.8% increase in our aircraft fuel
expense is attributable to a 17.3% increase in consumption, in combination with a 29.7% increase in the average cost of fuel per gallon. At 2008
rates of consumption, a one cent increase or decrease in the per gallon price of fuel will increase or decrease our fuel expense by approximately
$117,000 annually.

Aircraft maintenance, materials, and component repair expense was approximately the same as 2007. The 0.1% decrease in 2008 aircraft
maintenance expense to $13.8 million was primarily attributable to a reduction of aircraft component overhaul activity, which was offset by the
increase in flight hours used in the Term Cost Plan™ Agreement (the FMP contract) and increased parts usage with increased aircraft and ASM.
Overall, the cost per ASM for aircraft maintenance parts and components, excluding labor, decreased to 3.8 cents in 2008, as compared to 4.3
cents in 2007.

Depreciation and amortization expense was $5.6 million during 2008 and 2007.

Aircraft rental expense was $1.0 million during 2008, an increase of 56.1% from $0.6 million during 2007. The increase was primarily
attributable to the addition of two short term 1900D aircraft leases from another carrier during the year, which were taken out of service prior to
year end, and the addition of three 1900D leases from Raytheon.

Other rentals and landing fees increased 22.2% to $5.2 million in 2008 from $4.2 million in 2007. The increase in other rentals and landing fees
expenses is mostly attributable to the 20.7% increase in departures flown and additional cities served.

Other operating expenses increased 15.4% in 2008 to $18.4 million, from $16.0 million in 2007. The increase in other operating expenses is
primarily due to an increase of approximately $0.9 million in pilot training and associated lodging expenses as a result of growth in offered
capacity. Other increases include approximately $0.5 million for contract airline handling, $0.5 million for passenger booking fees, and $0.6
million for other expenses resulting from expanded operations.
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Interest Expense. Interest expense was $2.3 million during 2008 and 2007.

Income Tax Benefit (Expense). Until the fourth quarter of 2007, we had recorded a valuation allowance to fully reserve our net deferred tax
assets. In the fourth quarter of 2007, we determined that it was more likely than not that we would be able to utilize most of our net operating
loss carryforwards prior to their expiration and other deferred tax assets as they reverse. As a result, we released most of our deferred tax asset
valuation allowance and recorded a $9.6 million income tax benefit on our income statement. We had income tax expense of $2.6 million in
2008. The provision for income taxes, as a percentage of income before taxes, was 56.9 percent in 2008. Included in the 2008 rate was a $0.5
million (17.9 % of the effective tax rate) tax expense related to NOLs expiring unused.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash provided by operating activities was $8.3 million at December 31, 2009 compared to $7.5 million at December 31, 2008. We had
working capital of $9.6 million and a current ratio of 1.6:1 at December 31, 2009, compared to working capital of $3.1 million and a current
ratio of 1.2:1 at December 31, 2008. The increase in working capital, at December 31, 2009, is primarily due to the improvement in net income.
We also increased current deferred tax assets by approximately $2.1 million as a result of classifying deferred tax assets for net operating loss
carryforwards as current deferred tax assets at December 31, 2009, as we believe we will be able generate enough taxable income to utilize these
deferred tax assets in the next 12 months.

Our liquidity depends to a large extent on the number of passengers who fly with us, the fares they pay, the rate and amount of EAS subsidy we
receive, our operating and capital expenditures, our financing activities, and the cost of fuel.

Our ability to continue our expansion is highly dependent on our ability to acquire additional aircraft. We have leased three additional
Beechcraft 1900D aircraft from Raytheon in the fourth quarter of 2008 and leased four more Beechcraft 1900D aircraft from Raytheon during
2009.

Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $8.3 million as compared to $7.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Investing Activities. Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $1.3 million for the purchase of flight
equipment and other property and equipment. Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $2.0 million.

Financing Activities. Cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $6.1 million. During the year ended
December 31, 2009, we repaid $6.1 million on our notes payable.

Our principal creditor and largest single shareholder, Raytheon, holds the Company s Aircraft Notes secured by 25 Beechcraft 1900D aircraft
which mature on June 30, 2011. A $32.7 million total balloon payment, for all 25 aircraft notes, is due upon maturity of the notes. We will need
to refinance the obligation with Raytheon, generate enough cash from operations to repay the obligation, secure alternative sources of financing
with which to repay Raytheon, raise additional capital sufficient to repay Raytheon, or achieve any combination of the foregoing that might be
required to satisfy the terms of the Aircraft Notes.
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We believe, absent unusual circumstances, our available cash resources and cash generated from operations will be sufficient to meet our
anticipated working capital and capital expenditure requirements for at least the next 12 months.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our major contractual payment obligations as of December 31, 2009:

2010 2011-2012 (1) 2013-2014 After 2014 Total
Long-term debt contractual $ 6,446,880 $ 38,629,749 $3,805,544 $ 952,577 $49,834,750
Contractual interest on long-term debt (2) 3,251,392 2,147,813 498,642 49,530 5,947,377
Total debt 9,698,272 40,777,562 4,304,186 1,002,107 55,782,127
Aircraft lease obligations 2,274,000 3,021,420 150,000 5,445,420
Non-aircraft lease commitments 333,885 333,885
Total lease obligations 2,607,885 3,021,420 150,000 5,779,305
Total Obligations $12,306,157 $ 43,798,982 $4,454,186 $1,002,107 $61,561,432

(1)  Approximately $32 million of aircraft debt associated with the Raytheon Aircraft Notes matures on June 30, 2011.

(2) The amounts shown represent contractual interest payable on the notes and exclude total adjustments of $1,944,557, for all periods,
recorded under ASC 470-60-15 to the carrying value of the notes in the financial statements.

See discussion below for contractual interest obligations.

Contractual Interest Expense

Due to the amortization of the deferred gain on forgiveness of debt associated with our 2002 Restructuring Agreement with Raytheon, in
accordance with procedures set forth in ASC Section 470-60-15 (originally pursuant to SFAS No. 15- Accounting by Debtors and Creditors for
Troubled Debt Restructurings), our recorded interest expense will be significantly less than the contractual interest expense throughout the terms
of the Raytheon notes. During 2009, our contractual interest expense for all long-term debt obligations was $3.7 million. In 2009, we amortized
$1.5 million of the deferred gain on forgiven debt associated with the Raytheon 2002 Restructuring Agreement in accordance with ASC

Section 470-60-15. As a result, our net interest expense on long-term debt obligations, as reflected on the financial statements, was $2.2 million.
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The projected contractual interest expense on our long-term obligations (based on the interest rate stated in the debt instruments) for the next five
years and thereafter is as follows:

Average
Fixed Rate Fixed
Contractual Interest
Maturity Interest Rate
2010 $ 3,251,392 6.798%
2011 1,714,972 6.828%
2012 432,841 7.000%
2013 315,918 7.000%
2014 182,724 7.000%
Thereafter 49,530 7.000%

In comparison, after applying the amortization of the deferred gain on forgiven debt amounts against our contractual interest expense, our
reportable interest expense using ASC 470-60-15 for long-term obligations that are due in the five subsequent years and thereafter is estimated
to be as follows:

Interest Interest Rate
adjusted for adjusted for
Maturity ASC 470-60-15 ASC 470-60-15
2010 $ 1,906,781 3.987%
2011 1,114,026 4.435%
2012 432,841 7.000%
2013 315,918 7.000%
2014 182,724 7.000%
Thereafter 49,530 7.000%

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires the use of
estimates, judgments, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements;
revenues and expenses during the reporting period; and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC ) has defined a company s most critical accounting policies as the ones that are
most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results and that require us to make our most difficult and subjective judgments,

often as a result of the need to make estimates of matters that are inherently uncertain. Based on this definition, we have identified our critical
accounting policies as including those addressed below. We also have other key accounting policies, which involve the use of estimates,

judgments, and assumptions. See Note 3, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Procedures, in the Notes to the Financial Statements
for additional discussion of these items. Management believes that its estimates and assumptions are reasonable, based on information presently
available; however, changes in these estimates, judgments, and assumptions will occur as a result of future events. Accordingly, actual results

could differ from amounts estimated.

Depreciation and Residual Values On Aircraft. In accounting for long-lived assets, we make estimates about the expected useful lives,
projected residual values, and the potential for impairment. Estimates of useful lives
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and residual values of aircraft are based on actual industry experience with the same or similar aircraft types and anticipated utilization of the
aircraft. Changing market prices of new and used aircraft, government regulations, and changes in our maintenance program or operations could
result in changes to these estimates.

Accounting for Maintenance Deposits. We have evaluated the maintenance deposits on account and determined that, based on historical and
forecasted usage of the aircraft, that all amounts on deposit are probable of being returned as a result of the maintenance expected to be
performed on the aircraft s components prior to the leased aircraft s lease expiration (April 2013). If amounts paid on deposit are probable of
being returned, as a result of the maintenance expected to be performed on the aircraft s components prior to lease expiration, we will treat that
amount paid as a refundable deposit. If, based on historical and forecasted usage of the aircraft, we do not expect an amount paid to be returned,
we will expense that amount as maintenance expense at the time that expense is incurred. We will continue to evaluate our maintenance deposit
account as the leases progress toward lease termination, and make the determination if any maintenance deposits should be expensed if it
becomes less than probable that the deposits will be returned.

Inventories. Inventories are comprised primarily of expendable spare aircraft parts, fuel, materials, and supplies relating to flight equipment,
which are recorded at the lower of cost (average cost) or market. Expendable spare aircraft parts are subject to reserves for obsolescence.

Aircraft Valuation and Impairments. In accordance with ASC Section 360-10-35 (originally Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed of) for long-lived assets,
such as property, plant, equipment and aircraft, subject to amortization, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by
a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported
at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and would no longer be depreciated. The assets and liabilities of a disposal
group classified as held for sale would be presented separately in the appropriate asset and liability sections of the balance sheet. An impairment
loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds the asset s fair value.

Income Taxes. We account for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Under that method, deferred income taxes are recognized for
the tax consequences of temporary differences by applying enacted statutory tax rates applicable to future years to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts and tax bases of existing assets and liabilities and net operating losses ( NOLs ) and tax credit
carryforwards. A valuation allowance is provided to the extent that it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those
temporary differences become deductible. We consider the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax
planning strategies in making this assessment. The tax net operating loss carryforwards (NOLs) that have been generated are due in large part to
the accelerated depreciation of property and equipment over a shorter useful life for tax purposes. Approximately 98 percent of our NOLs expire
between 2020 and 2024. The book basis of property and equipment is approximately $49.5 million greater than the tax basis at December 31,
2009, all of which is expected to reverse during periods in which NOLs are available. Approximately $9.8 million ($513,000 tax effected) of
state NOLs are expected to expire unused, and accordingly a valuation allowance has been provided for these deferred tax assets. Based upon the
projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets become deductible, we believe it is more likely than not
that we will realize the benefits of most of the deductible temporary differences and NOLs. The amount of the deferred tax asset considered
realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carryforward period are reduced.
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Liability Accruals and Reserves. We are obligated under various agreements relating to employee health and welfare, injuries, tax and fee
remittances, and other contractual matters, some of which involve estimates of the ultimate amounts due and impacts of insurance coverage.
Changes in the estimates and assumptions could occur and would result in actual results being different than those estimated.

Effects of Inflation

We are subject to inflationary pressures from labor agreements, fuel price escalations, and increased operating costs at airports served by us. We
attempt to counteract the effects of inflation through fare increases, subsidy increases and capacity adjustments.

Environmental Matters

In the normal course of our operations, we are subject to various federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations relating to environmental
protection matters. These laws and regulations govern such matters as environmental reporting, storage and disposal of materials and chemicals
and aircraft noise. We are, and expect in the future to be, involved in various environmental matters and conditions at, or related to, our
properties. We are not currently subject to any environmental cleanup orders or actions imposed by regulatory authorities. We are not aware of
any active material environmental investigation related to our assets or properties.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

An off-balance sheet arrangement is any transaction, agreement or other contractual arrangement involving an unconsolidated entity under
which a company has (1) made guarantees, (2) a retained or a contingent interest in transferred assets, (3) an obligation under derivative
instruments classified as equity or (4) any obligation arising out of a material variable interest in an unconsolidated entity that provides
financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support to the company, or that engages in leasing, hedging or research and development
arrangements with the company.

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements of the types described in the four categories above that we believe may have a material current or
future effect on our financial condition, liquidity or results of operations.

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Market Risks

We are susceptible to certain risks related to changes in the cost of aircraft fuel and changes in interest rates. As of December 31, 2009, we did
not have any derivative financial instruments.

Aircraft Fuel

Due to the airline industry s dependency on aircraft fuel for operations, airline operators including Great Lakes are impacted by changes in
aircraft fuel prices. Aircraft fuel represented approximately 24.2% of our operating expenses in 2009. At 2009 rates of consumption, a one cent
increase or decrease in the per gallon price of fuel would increase or decrease our fuel expense by approximately $120,000 annually.

Interest Rates

Our operations are very capital intensive because the vast majority of our assets consist of flight equipment, which is financed primarily with
long-term debt. At December 31, 2009, all of the Company s long-term debt was financed with fixed interest rates, thereby eliminating our
current exposure to increases in interest rates.
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Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, together with the Report of the Company s Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm, are included in this Form 10-K on the pages indicated below.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 31
Balance Sheets as of December 31. 2009 and 2008 32
Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31. 2009. 2008 and 2007 33
Statements of Stockholders Equity for the Years Ended December 31. 2009, 2008 and 2007 34
Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 35
Notes to Financial Statements 36

Supporting schedules are omitted because they are inapplicable, not required, or the information is presented in the financial statements or notes
thereto.

30

Table of Contents 40



Edgar Filing: GREAT LAKES AVIATION LTD - Form 10-K

Table of Conten

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd. (the Company) as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the
related statements of income, stockholders equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2009. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Great Lakes Aviation,
Ltd. as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2009, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in note 2 to the accompanying financial statements, the Company adopted the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue
No. 08-3, Accounting by Lessees for Maintenance Deposits, (Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification
840-10), effective January 1, 2009.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Denver, Colorado

March 26, 2010
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Current assets:

Cash

Accounts receivable, net
Inventories, net

GREAT LAKES AVIATION, LTD.

Balance Sheets

December 31, 2009 and 2008

Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Deferred income taxes
Total current assets

Property and equipment:
Flight equipment
Other property and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Total property and equipment

Maintenance deposits
Other assets
Deferred income taxes

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Current liabilities:

Notes payable and current maturities of long-term debt

Accounts payable

Accrued interest, unearned revenue and other liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current maturities

Other long-term liabilities
Deferred income taxes
Deferred credits

Total liabilities

Preferred stock; $0.01 par value; Authorized: 25,000,000 shares.

No shares issued and outstanding

Common stock; $0.01 par value; Authorized: 50,000,000 shares.
Issued and outstanding: 14,291,970 shares

Paid-in capital

Table of Contents

December 31,
2009

$ 4,327,538
9,528,102
6,372,757
1,079,131
4,012,275

25,319,803

112,728,482
8,821,022
(65,650,280)

55,899,224

1,562,568
1,862,089

$ 84,643,684

$ 7,791,492
3,589,133
4,292,574

15,673,199

43,987,815
152,866
860,251

82,272

60,756,403

142,920
33,568,669

December 31,
2008

$ 3,494,484
8,497,958
4,272,261

785,523
2,247,592
19,297,818
112,168,728
8,713,039
(60,499,510)
60,382,257
1,623,669
4,913,162

$ 86,216,906

$ 7,630,474
3,717,501
4,863,493

16,211,468

51,780,307
711,062

129,110

68,831,947

142,920
33,568,669
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Accumulated deficit (9,824,308)

Total stockholders equity 23,887,281
Commitments and contingencies

Total liabilities and stockholders equity $ 84,643,684

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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(16,326,630)

17,384,959

$ 86,216,906

43



Edgar Filing: GREAT LAKES AVIATION LTD - Form 10-K

Table of Conten

Operating revenues:
Passenger

Public service

Freight, charter, and other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Salaries, wages, and benefits

Aircraft fuel

Aircraft maintenance, materials, and repairs
Depreciation and amortization

Aircraft rental

Other rentals and landing fees

Other operating expense

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net
Gain on extinguishment of debt

Total other expense

Income before income taxes
Income tax (expense) benefit

Net income

Net income per share:
Basic
Diluted

Average shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

Table of Contents

GREAT LAKES AVIATION, LTD.

Statements of Income

Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009
$ 58,736,610

61,258,859
1,849,162

121,844,631

31,500,185
26,630,846
16,925,204
5,640,649
2,066,334
6,646,086
20,489,441

109,898,745

11,945,886

(2,160,483)

(2,160,483)

9,785,403
(4,003,519)

$ 5,781,884

$ 0.40
0.40

14,291,970
14,442,357
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2008
$ 75,719,222

39,250,276
1,187,148

116,156,646

26,833,757
38,556,174
13,774,409
5,606,241
967,710
5,162,310
18,410,838

109,311,439

6,845,207

(2,336,322)

(2,336,322)

4,508,885
(2,567,541)

$ 1,941,344

$ 0.14
0.13

14,237,325
14,414,207

2007
$ 73,283,407

24,148,653
728,164

98,160,224

22,504,983
24,913,112
13,780,796
5,631,722
620,100
4,225,124
15,949,550

87,625,387

10,534,837

(2,318,635)
412,086

(1,906,549)

8,628,288
9,585,424

$ 18,213,712

$ 1.29
1.26

14,077,093
14,445,896
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GREAT LAKES AVIATION, LTD.

Statements of Stockholders Equity

Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007

Balance at December 31, 2006
Issuance of common stock

Net income and comprehensive income
Balance at December 31, 2007

Issuance of common stock
Net income and comprehensive income

Balance at January 1, 2009
Cumulative effect of change in accounting for maintenance deposits
(Note 2)

Revised balance at January 1, 2009

Net income and comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2009

Common stock

Shares

Amount

14,071,970 $ 140,720

20,000

14,091,970
200,000

14,291,970

14,291,970

200

140,920
2,000

142,920

142,920

14,291,970 $ 142,920

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Paid-in capital

33,468,644
22,025

33,490,669
78,000

33,568,669

33,568,669

33,568,669

Accumulated
deficit
(36,481,686)

18,213,712

(18,267,974)

1,941,344

(16,326,630)

720,438

(15,606,192)
5,781,884

(9,824,308)

Total
$ (2,872,322)

22,225
18,213,712

15,363,615

80,000
1,941,344

17,384,959

720,438

18,105,397
5,781,884

$ 23,887,281
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GREAT LAKES AVIATION, LTD.

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 5,781,884
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 5,640,649
Loss on items beyond economic repair 148,481
Non-cash gain on extinguishment of debt and leases
Amortization of ASC Section 470-60-15 deferred gain (1,517,335)
Deferred tax expense (benefit) 3,570,531
Change in current operating items:
Accounts receivable, net (1,030,144)
Inventories, net (2,100,496)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (293,608)
Maintenance deposits (403,931)
Other assets (238,420)
Accounts payable (128,368)
Accrued interest, unearned revenue and other liabilities (570,919)
Other long-term liabilities (558,196)
Deferred credits (46,838)
Net cash provided by operating activities 8,253,290
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from disposition of assets
Purchase of flight equipment and other property and equipment (1,306,097)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (1,306,097)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of notes payable and long-term debt (6,114,139)
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock
Net cash used in financing activities (6,114,139)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 833,054
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Beginning of year 3,494,484
End of year $ 4,327,538
Supplementary cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest (contractual) $ 3,692,657
Cash paid during the year for income taxes $ 299,950

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2008
$ 1,941,344

5,606,241
135,691

(1,685,890)
2,590,489

(1,810,354)
844,734
440,897

(517,007)
259,703
126,632

(402,262)
(46,837)

7,483,381

(2,008,522)

(2,008,522)

(6,105,120)
80,000

(6,025,120)

(550,261)

4,044,745

$ 3,494,484

$ 4,107,762
$ 30,200

2007
$18,213,712
5,631,722
18,295
(412,086)
(1,879,866)
(9,751,244)
(1,498,314)
(2,983,565)
1,056,558
(121,200)
16,578
89,014

(235,433)
(46,837)

8,097,334

175,000
(884,300)

(709,300)

(6,029,571)
22,225

(6,007,346)

1,380,688

2,664,057

$ 4,044,745

$ 4,860,538
$ 204,347
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Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd.

Notes to Financial Statements for December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008

Note 1. Business

Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd. (Great Lakes or the Company) is a regional airline operating as an independent carrier and as a code share partner
with United Air Lines, Inc. (United Airlines or United) and Frontier Airlines, Inc. (Frontier Airlines or Frontier). The Company and United
operate under a code share agreement that expires November 1, 2010. Terms of the agreement provide for the Company to implement United
Airlines code sharing for destinations the Company currently services to and from Billings, MT, Denver, CO, Kansas City, MO, Ontario, CA
and Phoenix, AZ hubs.

The Company operates under a similar code share agreement with Frontier. While the Frontier agreement does not have a fixed termination date,
it is terminable 180 days after written notice by either party. The Frontier agreement provides for the use of Frontier s flight designator code on
the Company s flights connecting with Frontier s flights in Albuquerque, NM, Billings, MT, Denver, CO, and Phoenix, AZ.

Currently, we estimate that approximately 39% of Great Lakes connecting passenger traffic utilizes the United code share product line and
approximately 21% of Great Lakes connecting passenger traffic utilizes the Frontier code share product line.

Approximately 50%, 34%, and 25% of the Company s total revenue during 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively, were generated by services
provided under the Essential Air Service (EAS) program administered by the United States Department of Transportation (DOT).

The Company provides charter air services to private individuals, corporations, and athletic teams. The Company also carries cargo on most of
the Company s scheduled flights and in certain locations, provides ground handling for other carriers.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company served seventeen states at 62 airports. The company operates hubs at Albuquerque, NM, Denver, CO,
Kansas City, MO, Milwaukee, WI, Ontario, CA, Phoenix, AZ, and Billings, MT. In January of 2010, the Company ceased its operations at its St.
Louis, MO hub.

The Company s principal creditor and largest single shareholder, Raytheon Aircraft Credit Corporation (Raytheon), holds the Company s aircraft
notes secured by 25 Beechcraft 1900D aircraft which mature on June 30, 2011. A $32.7 million total balloon payment, for all 25 aircraft notes, is
due upon maturity of the notes. The Company will need to refinance the obligation with Raytheon, generate enough cash from operations to

repay the obligation, secure alternative sources of financing with which to repay Raytheon, raise additional capital sufficient to repay Raytheon,

or achieve any combination of the foregoing that might be required to satisfy the terms of the aircraft notes.

NOTE 2. Change in Accounting for Maintenance Deposits

In June 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) reached a consensus in Issue No. 08-3,

( EITF 08-3 ), included in Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Subtopic 840-10, pertaining to maintenance deposits under certain
equipment lease agreements, whereby a lessee is legally or contractually responsible for repair and maintenance of the leased asset throughout
the lease term. Additionally, certain lease agreements include provisions requiring the lessee to make deposits to the lessor to financially protect
the lessor in the event the lessee does not properly maintain the leased asset. This issue applies to the lessee s accounting for maintenance
deposits paid by a lessee under an arrangement accounted for as a lease that are refunded only if the lessee performs specified maintenance
activities. The accounting by lessees for maintenance deposits was effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim
periods within those fiscal years. Earlier application was not permitted. The Company determined that two of its leased aircraft have
maintenance deposit provisions within the scope of this guidance. The cumulative effect
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Notes to Financial Statements for December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 (Continued)

of the change in accounting for nonrefundable maintenance deposits as of January 1, 2009 increased maintenance deposits by $1.1 million,
decreased long-term deferred tax assets by $0.4 million and decreased accumulated deficit by $0.7 million as of January 1, 2009. The Company s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009, failed to reflect the adoption of this new accounting pronouncement applicable to these two
aircraft. Had the Company adopted this guidance in the quarter ended March 31, 2009, the Company s statement of income for the three months
ending March 31, 2009, would have reported $152,000 less maintenance expense for the quarter, income tax expense would have been
approximately $64,000 higher and net income would have been approximately $88,000 ($0.01 per share) higher.

The Company adopted the provisions of ASC Subtopic 840-10 effective January 1, 2009 during the quarter ended June 30, 2009 as an
immaterial correction of an error given the immaterial impact on projected annualized income and given that the adoption results in an increase
in a long-term asset, a decrease in long-term deferred tax assets and a decrease in accumulated deficit, in amounts which the Company does not
consider to be material to the financial statements for the three months ended March 31, 2009.

The Company is required to make maintenance deposit payments for two of its Embraer EMB-120 Brasilia leased aircraft. At January 1, 2009,
the Company had made maintenance deposits of approximately $1.1 million and as of December 31, 2009, the Company s maintenance deposits
were approximately $1.6 million. These maintenance deposits are reimbursable to the Company as maintenance is performed on the aircraft and
the Company incurs maintenance expense for the major components of the aircraft. ASC Subtopic 840-10 requires that lessees continually
evaluate whether it is probable that an amount on deposit with a lessor will be returned to reimburse the costs of the maintenance activities
incurred by the lessee. When an amount on deposit is less than probable of being returned, it shall be recognized as additional expense. When
the underlying maintenance is performed, the maintenance costs shall be expensed or capitalized in accordance with the lessee s maintenance
accounting policy. As of December 31, 2009, the Company has evaluated the maintenance deposits on account and determined that, based on
historical and forecasted usage of the aircraft, that all amounts on deposit are probable of being returned to the Company as a result of the
maintenance expected to be performed on the aircraft s components. The Company will continue to evaluate its maintenance deposit account as
these two leases progress towards lease termination in April of 2013, and make the determination if any existing or future maintenance deposits
should be expensed if it becomes less than probable that the deposits will be returned.

Note 3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Procedures

(a) Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires the Company s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible into cash. Cash equivalents are not subject to significant risk from fluctuations in interest rates and as a result, the
carrying amount of cash equivalents approximates fair value. To preserve capital and maintain liquidity, we invest with financial institutions we
deem to be of sound financial condition, and in high quality and relatively risk-free investment products. Our cash investment policy limits the
concentration of investments with specific financial institutions or among certain products and includes criteria related to credit worthiness of
any particular financial institution.
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Notes to Financial Statements for December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 (Continued)

(c) Accounts Receivable. Substantially all accounts receivable balances are due from various airlines, credit card companies, or the United States
government. The table below shows the composition and approximate percentages attributable to our receivables at December 31, 2009 and
2008.

December 31,
2009 2008
Airlines 26% 21%
Credit card companies 13 15
United States government 59 53
Other 2 11
Total accounts receivable 100% 100%

All receivables are pledged as collateral under the Company s debt agreements.

(d) Inventories. Inventories consist of expendable spare parts, fuel, materials, and supplies relating to flight equipment. Inventories are stated at
the lower of average cost or market. Expendable parts are charged to maintenance expense as used. Inventories consisting of expendable spare
parts and equipment are pledged as collateral for the Raytheon notes.

(e) Property and Equipment. Property and equipment includes aircraft and major parts relating to such aircraft. Property is stated at cost and
depreciated on a straight-line basis for financial reporting purposes over estimated useful lives of 10 to 20 years for flight equipment and 3 to 10
years for other property and equipment. The estimated lives used to record depreciation on the Company s aircraft may be affected by the
revenue generating capability of the aircraft, technology, policies regarding EAS subsidies promulgated by the DOT, and changes in strategy by
the Company. In accounting for long-lived assets, we make estimates about the expected useful lives and projected residual values. Estimates of
useful lives and residual values of aircraft are based on actual industry experience with the same or similar aircraft types and anticipated
utilization of the aircraft. Changing market prices of new and used aircraft, government regulations, and changes in our maintenance program or
operations could result in changes to these estimates. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the life of the lease or the life of
the asset. Accelerated methods of depreciation are used for tax reporting purposes. All owned aircraft are pledged as collateral for the Raytheon
notes.

(f) Impairment of Long Lived Assets. In accordance with ASC Section 360-10-35, (originally Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed of) long-lived
assets, such as property, plant, equipment, and aircraft, subject to amortization, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by
a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported
at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and would no longer be depreciated. The assets and liabilities of a disposal
group classified as held for sale would be presented separately in the appropriate asset and liability sections of the balance sheet. An impairment
loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds the asset s fair value.
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Notes to Financial Statements for December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 (Continued)

(g) Other Assets. Other assets consist primarily of deposits with financial institutions, bonding companies, facilities lessors, aircraft lessors and
others to secure the payment of fixed obligations. Deposits related to long-term facility leases were $1.0 million and $0.9, and aircraft lessors
were $0.2 million and $0.4 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

(h) Maintenance Deposits. For two of its aircraft, the Company pays its lessor maintenance deposits that are refunded only if the Company
performs specified maintenance activities. These maintenance deposits are accounted for in accordance with ASC subtopic 840-10, whereby the
deposits are capitalized until such time as the maintenance event occurs, or the Company determines it is no longer probable that an amount on
deposit with its lessor will be returned to reimburse the costs of the maintenance activities incurred by the lessee. When an amount on deposit is
less than probable of being returned, it shall be recognized as additional expense. The Company has evaluated the maintenance deposits on
account and determined that, based on historical and forecasted usage of the aircraft, that all amounts on deposit are probable of being returned
as a result of the maintenance expected to be performed on the aircraft s components prior to the leased aircraft s lease expiration.

(i) Revenue Recognition. Revenue generated from passenger, cargo, and other activities are recorded as revenue either when the respective
services are rendered or when the time for use of the ticket has expired, one year after the date of issuance, and are net of excise taxes, passenger
facility charges and security fees. Unused tickets issued by the Company are recorded in the accompanying balance sheets as unearned revenue.

The Company also receives public service subsidy revenues for providing air service to certain communities that do not generate sufficient
traffic to fully support profitable air service under the EAS program. With respect to awarded EAS subsidy cases, the Company records revenues
based on departures performed at departure rates that were approved by the DOT during the term of service agreement.

(j) Code Share Relationships. At December 31, 2009, the Company operated under code share agreements with United Airlines and Frontier
Airlines. These code share agreements are prorate agreements whereby the passenger s fare is split between the two carriers based on the distance
traveled by the passenger on each airline. Revenue from these code share agreements is recorded as passenger revenue when the services are
rendered. The Company also participates in United s Mileage Plus frequent flyer program. If a customer books travel on United which includes a
segment on Great Lakes, the United customer earns points in their United frequent flier account for the miles flown on the Great Lakes segment.
When a United frequent flier customer earns sufficient points to earn an award, he or she can chose whether to redeem those points on a United
flight connecting with a Great Lakes flight. Our participation in United s frequent flyer program does not require us to issue tickets in exchange
for frequent flyer awards. Award redemption can only be facilitated through United on United flights in conjunction with a Great Lakes flight.
Tickets sold to passengers on Great Lakes ticket stock for Great Lakes flight segments (ZK designator) are not eligible to accrue United frequent
flyer credits. The Company accounts for the incremental cost to fly United frequent flyer passengers at the time of service since the Company
does not have sufficient information to estimate future awards expected to be redeemed on a Great Lakes segment, and an estimated frequent
flyer liability would be insignificant in the aggregate given the historical volume of awards used for flights including Great Lakes segments.

(k) Income Taxes. The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Under that method, deferred income taxes are
recognized for the tax consequences of temporary differences by applying enacted statutory tax rates applicable to future years to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts and tax basis of existing assets and

39

Table of Contents 51



Edgar Filing: GREAT LAKES AVIATION LTD - Form 10-K

Table of Conten
Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd.

Notes to Financial Statements for December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 (Continued)

liabilities and net operating losses and tax credit carryforwards. A valuation allowance is provided to the extent that it is more likely than not that
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The effect on deferred taxes from a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes
the enactment date.

(l) Income Per Share. Basic income per share has been computed by dividing the net income for a particular year by the weighted average
number of shares of common stock outstanding during such year. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution of securities that could
share in earnings.

(m) Stock Option Plans. For the years ending December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 there were no stock-based compensation awards granted.

(n) Aircraft Maintenance. The Company operates under an FAA-approved continuous inspection and maintenance program. The Company
accounts for maintenance activities on the direct expense method. Under this method, major airframe overhaul maintenance costs are recognized
as expense as maintenance services are performed. Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Major Beechcraft
1900D engine maintenance for most of our 1900D engines is performed under a long-term power-by-the-hour (PBTH) contract. Under the
PBTH contract, the Company pays a service provider a fixed amount per flight hour (subject to fixed nominal annual rate increases) in exchange
for required maintenance and repairs under the predefined maintenance program. The expense over the life of the contract is recognized at a
level rate per hour during the minimum, non-cancelable term of the agreement.

Maintenance and repairs, including periodic aircraft overhauls, are expensed as incurred or when the component is placed in service. Major
modifications that extend the life or improve the usefulness of aircraft are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful life.

(0) Fair Value of Financial Instruments. Fair value estimates, methods, and assumptions of financial instruments are set forth below:

Cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities. The carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short-term
nature of these instruments.

Long-term debt. Based on the Company s concentration of long-term debt with one aircraft creditor, who is also a significant stockholder of the
company, the fair value of long-term debt was not reasonably determinable.

(p) Recent Accounting Pronouncements. On September 23, 2009, the FASB ratified EITF No. 08-1, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables (EITF 08-1). EITF 08-1 updates the current guidance pertaining to multiple-element revenue arrangements included in ASC
Subtopic 605-25, which originated primarily from EITF 00-21, also titled Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables. EITF 08-1 will be
effective for annual reporting periods beginning January 1, 2011 for calendar-year entities. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
EITF 08-1 on its financial position, results of operations, cash flows, and disclosures.

On August 28, 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2009-05, Measuring Liabilities at Fair Value (ASU
2009-05). ASU 2009-05 provides additional guidance clarifying the measurement of liabilities at fair value. ASU 2009-05 is effective in fourth
quarter 2009 for a calendar-year entity. The Company adopted ASU 2009-05 in the fourth quarter of 2009. This standard did not have an effect
on the Company s financial position, results of operations, cash flows or disclosures.
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In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 168, The FASB Accounting Standards Codification ™ and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles, as amended, which was codified into Topic 105 Generally Accepted Accounting Standards in the ASC. This standard
establishes the FASB ASC as the source of authoritative accounting principles recognized by the FASB to be applied in the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. This standard is effective for interim and annual financial
periods ending after September 15, 2009. We have our references to GAAP in this report in accordance with the provisions of this
pronouncement. The implementation of FASB ASC 105 did not have a material effect on the Company s financial position, results of operations,
cash flows or disclosures.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments (FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1) (codified as ASC 825). FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 amends SFAS No. 107, Disclosures about
Fair Value of Financial Instruments, to require disclosures about fair value of financial instruments in interim as well as in annual financial
statements and amends guidance previously referenced as APB Opinion No. 28, Interim Financial Reporting, to require those disclosures in
interim financial statements. FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 were adopted as of June 30, 2009 and only amends the disclosure requirements
about fair value of financial instruments in interim periods. The Company adopted this amendment during the second quarter of 2009 and there
was no impact.

Note 4. Leases
Aircraft Leases

At December 31, 2009 and 2008 the Company operated two leased Embraer Brasilia Model 120 aircraft, which are accounted for under an
operating lease agreement. In addition to scheduled future minimum lease payments, the Company is required to make supplemental rent
payments to cover the cost of major scheduled maintenance overhauls of these aircraft which are reimbursable to the Company at the time
maintenance overhauls are completed. These supplemental rentals are based on the number of flight hours flown and/or flight departures and are
included in maintenance expense. The lease agreements require the Company to pay taxes, maintenance, insurance, and other operating expenses
applicable to the leased property. During the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 supplemental rent payments were $589,377,
$588,133 and $499,466, respectively.

At December 31, 2009, the Company operated seven Beechcraft 1900D aircraft leased from Raytheon. Four of the aircraft were complete with
engines and three aircraft were without engines, which are accounted for under operating lease agreements. The lease agreements require the
Company to pay taxes, maintenance, insurance, and other operating expenses applicable to the leased property. In addition to scheduled future
minimum lease payments, the Company is required to make payments to cover the cost of components related to leased engines, attached to four
of the leased aircraft, as these components usable life cycle is consumed. During the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 engine
consumption fees were $314,462, $27,332 and $0, respectively.

The lease agreements described above contain aircraft return provisions which require specified time remaining between scheduled maintenance
events, as mandated by our FAA-approved maintenance program for major components of the aircraft. In the event that the aircraft are returned
and do not meet the specified times remaining for each identified component, we are subject to compensate the lessor for components that are
below the specified times remaining when the aircraft is returned. The Company plans to satisfy its lease return obligations by (a) performing
maintenance (either internally or by contracting a third-party service provider) to return the aircraft to the level of maintenance required by the
contract, (b) paying cash to compensate the lessor if the aircraft is returned with less flight time remaining than specified under the lease, or

(c) swapping owned components (or other leased components) for leased components (engines) with sufficient time remaining on them. As the
end of the lease term approaches, the Company re-evaluates the lease return conditions to determine if it is necessary to accrue any incremental
amounts expected to become due, and makes accruals if supplemental payments to the lessor become probable and estimable.
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Other Leases

The Company leases office and hangar space, spare engines and office equipment for its headquarters, reservation facilities, airport facilities,
and certain other equipment. The Company s headquarter lease provides for three five year renewal options making this facility available to the
Company through the year 2020. The Company also leases certain airport gate facilities on a month-to-month basis.

At December 31, 2009, commitments under non-cancelable operating leases (excluding aircraft supplemental rent requirements) with terms in
excess of one year were as follows:

Aircraft Other Total
2010 $ 2,274,000 $ 333,885 $ 2,607,885
2011 2,187,033 2,187,033
2012 834,387 834,387
2013 150,000 150,000
2014
Thereafter

$ 5,445,420 $ 333,885 $5,779,305

Facilities rental expense under operating leases, including month-to-month leases, for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was
$3.9 million, $3.1 million, and $2.6 million, respectively.

Note 5. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following balances at December 31, 2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Accrued expenses $ 272,937 $ 173,137
Unearned revenue 1,882,106 2,421,495
Accrued property taxes 62,049 375,007
Accrued payroll 2,075,482 1,893,854
Total accrued liabilities $4,292,574  $4,863,493

Note 6. Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt

The following table sets forth, as of December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the amounts of the Company s long-term debt, the amounts of
current maturities of long-term debt and the additional amounts of current and long-term debt recorded by the Company as required by ASC
Section 470-60-15 (originally pursuant to SFAS No. 15- Accounting by Debtors and Creditors for Troubled Debt Restructurings), in connection
with the Company s December 2002 restructuring agreement with Raytheon:

2009 2008
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Long-term debt:

Raytheon Aircraft Credit Corporation principal $ 49,834,750

Raytheon carrying value under ASC Section 470-60-15 1,944,557

Total long-term debt 51,779,307

Less:

Current maturities of long-term debt (6,446,880)
Current portion of ASC Section 470-60-15 (1,344,612)
Total current portion (7,791,492)
Total long-term portion $ 43,987,815
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$ 55,948,889
3,461,892

59,410,781

(6,114,138)
(1,516,336)

(7,630,474)

$51,780,307
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The Raytheon debt consists of 25 Aircraft Notes secured by Beechcraft model 1900D aircraft, a Senior Note secured by four Embraer Brasilia
EMB 120 aircraft and all other assets of the Company. On March 9, 2007, the Company and Raytheon entered into an Amended and Restated
Restructuring Agreement (the Amended Agreement), which amends and restates in its entirety the Restructuring Agreement between the
Company and Raytheon dated as of December 31, 2002, (the 2002 Restructuring Agreement). Pursuant to the Amended Agreement, the
Company issued to Raytheon 25 amended and restated promissory notes (the Aircraft Notes), each secured by an amended security agreement
covering the related aircraft. The Aircraft Notes replace the existing notes issued by the Company to Raytheon on December 31, 2002. Each of
the Aircraft Notes has an original principal amount of $2.2 million, for a total principal amount of $52.9 million, bears interest at a fixed rate of
6.75% per annum, and provides for monthly payments with interest in arrears. The Aircraft Notes mature on June 30, 2011, at which time a final
payment of $1.3 million will be due for each aircraft. A $32.7 million total balloon payment, for all 25 Aircraft Notes, is due upon maturity of
the notes. We will need to refinance the obligation with Raytheon, generate enough cash from operations to repay the obligation, secure
alternative sources of financing with which to repay Raytheon, raise additional capital sufficient to repay Raytheon, or achieve any combination
of the foregoing that might be required to satisfy the terms of the Aircraft Notes.

Under the Amended Agreement, the Company issued to Raytheon a promissory note (the Senior Note) that replaced both the existing senior note
and subordinated note issued by the Company to Raytheon on December 31, 2002. The Senior Note has an original principal amount of $13.2
million and bears interest at a rate of 7.00% per annum. Interest on the Senior Note is payable monthly in arrears on the last day of each month.
The Senior Note provides for quarterly payments of principal on June 30, September 30, and December 30 each year until the note matures on
December 30, 2015. As additional security for the Senior Note, the Company pledged four Embraer Brasalia aircraft, as well as all other assets
of the Company.

The Amended Agreement requires the Company to prepay amounts outstanding under the Company s notes held by Raytheon in an amount equal

to 70% of the excess cash for any fiscal year. Excess cash means as at the end of any fiscal year an amount equal to (i) the sum of the Company s
cash, cash equivalents and short term instruments, minus (ii) a minimum of $3.0 million plus 4% of the difference in revenue for the current year

and revenue for the year ending December 31, 2006 of $87.6 million. Based on the Company s financial results for the year ending December 31,
2009 the Company was not required to make an additional prepayment.

The amount of long-term debt also includes additional amounts of debt recorded pursuant to ASC Section 470-60-15. This additional debt is
being amortized as a reduction of interest expense over the remaining term of the debt. Due to the amortization of the ASC Section 470-60-15
amounts on the Company s restructured debt obligations to Raytheon, the Company s interest expense will be significantly less than the
contractual interest expense throughout the terms of the Raytheon notes. During 2009, the Company s contractual interest expense
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for all long-term debt was $3.7 million. In accordance with procedures set forth in ASC Section 470-60-15, the Company amortized $1.5
million, $1.7 million and $1.9 million of the ASC Section 470-60-15 balances for the year ending December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. The Company s net interest expense on long-term debt obligations, as reflected in the financial statements, net of interest income,
was $2.2 million, $2.3 million and $2.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

On April 27, 2007, the Company and FINOV A Capital Corporation amended the September 30, 2006 promissory note payable to FINOVA
which had originally provided for 45 consecutive monthly payments of $22,342 ending June 30, 2010. The amended note provided for continued
scheduled monthly payments of $22,342 through June 30, 2007 followed by three consecutive monthly payments of $130,747 commencing

July 30, 2007 through September 30, 2007. The note has been paid in full and all debt owing under the note forgiven. The Company recorded a
gain of approximately $412,000 ($0.03 per share) as a result of this forgiveness of debt.

Reduction of Debt Balances. As of December 31, 2009, the long-term debt obligations due in the five subsequent years and thereafter under
their contractual terms were as follows:

Beechcraft
1900Ds Other Total
2010 $ 5,044,108 $ 1,402,772 $ 6,446,880
2011 35,324,205 1,652,772 36,976,977
2012 1,652,772 1,652,772
2013 1,902,772 1,902,772
2014 1,902,772 1,902,772
Thereafter 952,577 952,577

40,368,313 9,466,437 49,834,750

Additional carrying value
ASC Section 470-60-15 1,944,557 1,944,557

$42,312,870 $ 9,466,437 $51,779,307
Note 7. Income Taxes

The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those
temporary differences become deductible. The Company considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable
income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. The tax net operating loss carryforwards (NOLs) that have been generated are
due in large part to the accelerated depreciation of property and equipment over a shorter useful life for tax purposes. Approximately 98 percent
of the Company s NOLSs expire between 2020 and 2024. The book basis of property and equipment is approximately $49.5 million greater than
the tax basis at December 31, 2009, all of which is expected to reverse during periods in which NOLs are available. Approximately $9.8 million
($513,000 tax effected) of state NOL s are expected to expire unused and accordingly a valuation allowance has been provided for these deferred
tax assets. Based upon the projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets become deductible, the
Company believes it is more likely than not that it will realize the benefits of most of the deductible temporary differences and NOLs. The
amount of the deferred tax asset considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during
the carryforward period are reduced.
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The Company s estimated net operating loss carry forwards for Federal income tax purposes totaling approximately $56.6 million at

December 31, 2009, expire in years 2019 through 2026 as follows (in thousands):

Year of Expiration
2019
2020
2021
2023
2024
2026

Amount

202
27,796
22,526

4,011
2,055
2

$56,592

In order for the Company to utilize these NOLs prior to expiration, the Company would need to generate taxable income of $56.6 million during
the next 14 years, or approximately $4 million per year. The Company had taxable income of $10.6 million in 2009 and $3.5 million in 2008.

A deferred income tax asset valuation allowance is established when it is more likely than not that all or some portion of the deferred income tax
assets will not be realized. After reducing the deferred income tax assets by the valuation allowance, the net deferred income tax assets represent
the income tax benefits that are expected to be realized. Until the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company had recorded a valuation allowance to
fully reserve its net deferred tax assets. In the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company determined that it was more likely than not that the Company
would be able to utilize most of its net operating loss carryforwards prior to their expiration and utilize its deferred tax assets as they reverse. As
a result, the Company released most of its deferred tax asset valuation allowance and recorded a $9.6 million income tax benefit on the

Company s 2007 income statement.

Income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 is presented below:

Year ended December 31, 2009:

U.S. Federal
State and local

Year ended December 31, 2008:

U.S. Federal
State and local

Year ended December 31, 2007:

U.S. Federal
State and local

Table of Contents

Current

$ 200,909
232,079

$ 432,988

$ (43,301)
20,353

$ (22,948)

$ 165,820

Deferred

$ 3,127,525
$ 443,006

$ 3,570,531

$ 2,197,034
$ 393,455

$ 2,590,489

$ (8,665,762)
(1,085,482)

Total

$ 3,328,434
$ 675,085

$ 4,003,519

$ 2,153,733
$ 413,808

$ 2,567,541

$ (8,499,942)
(1,085,482)
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The federal statutory tax rate of 35% differs from the Company s effective income tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and
2007 as follows:

2009 2008 2007
Income tax expense (benefit) at the federal statutory income tax
rate $ 3,424,391 $ 1,578,110 $ 3,019,901
State income tax expense, net of federal income tax benefit 428,787 293,105 705,563
Book expenses not deductible for tax purposes 134,800 110,939 98,000
Decrease in valuation allowance (117,192) (90,000) (13,555,000)
Expiration of NOLs unused 459,792
Impact of changes in rates 132,756 52,877
Other (523) 162,718 146,112
Income tax expense (benefit) $ 4,003,519 $2,567,541 $ (9,585,424)

During 2008, the Company identified certain errors in the calculation of its December 31, 2007 deferred tax assets. In conjunction with the
provision to return reconciliation process in the third quarter of 2008, the Company identified errors totaling $328,000 and recorded that
adjustment in the third quarter ending September 30, 2008. As a result of incremental $614,000 in errors identified in conjunction with the
preparation of the December 31, 2008 income tax provision, the Company determined that the aggregate of these errors totaling $942,000 were
material to 2008, and determined that these errors should be recorded as immaterial corrections to the December 31, 2007 financial statements.
As aresult, the $328,000 previously recorded in income tax expense for the quarter ending September 30, 2008 was reversed and recorded in the
December 31, 2007 prior period financial statements. The Company corrected the third quarter ended September 30, 2008 results presented in
note 11 to eliminate the tax provision to tax return true up adjustment of $328,000 and instead incorporated this into the immaterial correction to
the 2007. This resulted in a reduction of income tax expense as reported for the three months ended September 30, 2008 from $952,422 as
previously reported to $624,422 as revised. This also resulted in an increase in net income as previously reported for the three months ended
September 30, 2008 from ($82,424) to $245,576 as revised. The impact of the above resulted in a revision of December 31, 2007 income tax
benefit from $10,527,569 to $9,585,424 which reduced net income from $19,155,827 to $18,213,712 ($0.07 per share).
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Deferred tax assets (liabilities) as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, were as follows:

2009 2008
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 20,799,921 $ 24,750,179
Alternative minimum tax carryforwards 426,020 232,027
ASC Section 470-60-15 interest 743,524 1,311,019
Inventory reserve 911,787 963,118
Deferred revenue 719,644 917,020
Other Reserves 367,551 367,690
Other 8,089
Total gross deferred tax assets 23,968,447 28,549,142
Less: valuation allowance (512,808) (630,000)
Net deferred tax assets 23,455,639 27,919,142
Deferred tax liabilites:
Property and equipment (20,303,615) (20,758,388)
Total deferred tax asset $ 3,152,024 $ 7,160,754

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S., and various state and local jurisdictions. The Company is not currently under examination by
the IRS. Federal tax returns remain subject to examination for three years after a tax net operating loss is utilized, accordingly the tax returns
may remain subject to audit beyond the original statute of limitations State jurisdictions also remain subject to examination.

The Company believes that its income tax filing positions and deductions related to tax periods subject to examination will be sustained upon
audit and does not anticipate any adjustments that will result in a material adverse effect on the Company s financial condition, results of
operations, or cash flows. Therefore, no reserves for uncertain income tax positions have been recorded pursuant to ASC 740-10-25.

Note 8. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company maintains a qualified 401(k) employee savings plan for the benefit of substantially all of the Company s employees. The Company
matches up to 4% of participating employees contributions. Company contributions, net of forfeitures, totaled $294,594 in 2009, $254,055 in
2008, and $219,857 in 2007.

In 1993, the Company adopted the Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd. 1993 Stock Option Plan and the Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd. 1993 Director Stock
Option Plan (collectively, the Plans). The Plans permitted the grant of stock options in the aggregate of 1,300,000 shares of the Company s
common stock to key employees, officers, and directors of the Company. Pursuant to their terms, both Plans expired on October 31, 2003, and
no options have been granted after October 31, 2003. However, all outstanding options remain in effect until such outstanding options have
either expired or been cancelled.

Options granted under the Plans become 20% vested upon the completion of 12 continuous months of employment from the date of grant, with
additional 20% vesting in each subsequent 12-month period of employment over a continuous five-year period. The options expire 10 years
from the date of grant. Options are forfeited upon termination from employment for reasons other than retirement, death, or disability.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, there were no options granted. The Company did not realize any tax deductions related to the
exercise of stock options during 2009, 2008 or 2007. The Company will record such deductions to additional paid in capital when realized. The
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options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2009 and 2008 was $206,628 and $363,924 respectively. There was no unrecognized
compensation cost from unvested stock options at the implementation date of ASC Section 718-10-25 (originally pursuant to SFAS
123(R)-Share Based Payment).

A summary of the option activity under all stock option plans during the year ended December 31, 2009 is presented below:

Weighted Average
Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual
Shares Exercise Price Life (Years)
Outstanding at January 1, 2009 230,000 $ 0.48
Granted
Canceled
Exercised
Outstanding at December 31, 2009 230,000 $ 0.48 3
Options exercisable at December 31, 2009 230,000 $ 0.48 3

Note 9. Income Per Share

The following table provides a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted income per share computations for the
periods presented:

2009 2008 2007
Per Per Per
Income Shares share Income Shares share Income Shares share
(numerator) (denominator) amount (numerator) (denominator) amount (numerator) (denominator) amount
Basic income per
share attributable to
common stockholders $ 5,781,884 14,291,970 $ 0.40 $ 1,941,344 14,237,325 $ 0.14 $18,213,712 14,077,093 $ 1.29
Effect of dilutive
securities: Stock
options 150,387 176,882 (0.01) 368,803 (0.03)

Diluted income per
share attributable to
common stockholders  $ 5,781,884 14,442,357 $ 0.40 $1,941,344 14,414,207 $ 0.13 $18,213,712 14,445,896 $ 1.26

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, there were no stock options excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share. For
the year ended December 31, 2007, the number of stock options that were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share, because
the exercise of such options would have been anti-dilutive, totaled approximately 120,000.

Under the terms of the Company s debt agreements with Raytheon, the Company is prohibited from paying dividends.
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Note 10. Transactions with Affiliates

The Company rents two six-passenger aircraft and a vehicle from lowa Great Lakes Flyers, Inc., a corporation solely owned by Douglas G.
Voss, the Company s Chairman and major stockholder. Total payments for the leases were $28,500 in 2009, $28,500 in 2008, and $28,500 in
2007. As of December 31, 2009, Mr. Douglas Voss controlled 5,581,000 shares of common stock of the Company, representing an approximate
39.0% interest in the Company s outstanding common stock.

As of December 31, 2009, Raytheon owned 5,371,980 shares of common stock of the Company, representing an approximate 37.6% interest in
the Company s outstanding common stock.

The Company made cash payments to Raytheon, consisting of principal and interest payments on debt, lease payments, lease deposits, and
supplemental lease fees, of approximately $11.8 million, $10.4 million and $10.3 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Note 11. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation. The Company is a party to ongoing legal claims and assertions arising in the ordinary course of business. Management believes that
the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company s financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Union Agreements. As of March 1, 2010, approximately 37 percent of the Company s employees are subject to union agreements.

The Company s pilots are represented by the United Transportation Union (UTU). In May 2006, the Company and the pilots agreed to binding
arbitration to achieve a new three year labor agreement. On September 16, 2006, the arbitrator ruled on terms that resulted in a new labor
agreement. The Company and the UTU are currently engaged in negotiations over the terms of a new pilot agreement.

The Company s flight attendants are also represented by the UTU, and the Company s agreement with the flight attendants became amendable on
April 1, 2002. The Company and the flight attendants are currently engaged in contract mediation under the auspices of the National Mediation
Board.

The Company s mechanics and maintenance clerks are represented by the International Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers
(IAM). The collective bargaining agreements between the Company and the clerks and mechanics represented by IAM, District 143, became
amendable in 2002 and 2005, respectively. In August of 2007, approximately sixteen months after collective bargaining sessions had ended, the
IAM invoked National Mediation Board assistance.
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Note 12. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

The following table presents selected quarterly unaudited financial data for quarters during the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 (in
thousands, except for per share information):

First Second Third Fourth Total
2009 Quarter Quarter Quarter  Quarter Year
Operating revenues $27,951 $29,837 $32,029 $32,027 $121,844
Operating income 777 3,322 4,571 3,275 11,945
Net income 93 1,597 2,487 1,605 5,782
Net income per share
Basic $ 001 $ 011 $ 017 $ O0.11 $ 0.40
Diluted 0.01 0.11 0.17 0.11 0.40
Weighted average shares outstanding
Basic 14,292 14,292 14,292 14,292 14,292
Diluted 14,455 1,450 14,423 14,438 14,442
First Second Third Fourth Total
2008 Quarter Quarter Quarter (1) Quarter Year
Operating revenues $25,940 $27,838 $ 31,292 $31,086 $116,156
Operating income 941 667 1,461 3,776 6,845
Net income 211 17 246 1,467 1,941
Net income per share
Basic $ 002 $ 000 $ 002 $ 010 $ 0.14
Diluted 0.01 0.00 0.02 0.10 0.13
Weighted average shares outstanding
Basic 14,092 14,272 14,292 14,292 14,237
Diluted 14,435 14,434 14,472 14,453 14,414

(1) Asdescribed in Note 6, the Company made immaterial corrections in 2007, which resulted in a corresponding change to the third quarter
of 2008. This resulted in a reduction of income tax expense as reported for the three months ended September 30, 2008 from $952,422 as
previously reported to $624,422 as revised. This also resulted in an increase in net income as previously reported for the three months
ended September 30, 2008 of ($82,424) to $245,576 as revised.
The above financial data includes normal recurring adjustments and reflects all adjustments that are, in the opinion of management, necessary
for a fair presentation of such financial data. The Company s business is seasonal and, accordingly, interim results are not indicative of results for
a full year.
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

Item 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain a system of disclosure controls and procedures that is designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our Exchange
Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC s rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we
conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)). Based on this
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of December 31, 2009, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective.

Management s Annual Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over
financial reporting, as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f), is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, our principal executive and
principal financial officers and effected by our Board of Directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that:

Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our
assets;

Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of our management and directors; and

Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of our assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have
inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial
statement preparation and presentation.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting (ICFR) as of December 31, 2009. Management
assessed the effectiveness of our ICFR based on the criteria for effective ICFR established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and SEC guidance on conducting such assessments by
smaller reporting companies and non-accelerated filers. Based on this assessment, management believes that as of December 31, 2009, our
internal control over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria.
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This annual report does not include an attestation report of the company s registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over
financial reporting. Management s report was not subject to attestation by the company s registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary
rules of the SEC that permit the Company to provide only management s report in this annual report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

During the Company s most recent fiscal quarter, there has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule
13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company s
internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.
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PART III

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Our Directors

The following table and narrative provide information concerning the members of our board of directors as of March 1, 2010. Our directors are
elected by a plurality of the votes cast. Each director has been appointed to serve until the next annual meeting of shareholders and until their
respective successors are elected and duly qualified. There are no familial relationships between any director or officer.

Principal Position with
Director
Name Age Occupation Company Since
Douglas G. Voss 55  Chairman of the Board of Directors Chairman of the Board of Directors 1979
and President of Great Lakes and President of Great Lakes
Aviation, Ltd. Aviation, Ltd.
James R. Link(1)(2)(3) 65 Business Consultant Director 2005
Vernon A. Mickelson(1)(2)(3) 83 Business Consultant Director 1994
A.R. Moulton, III(1) 67  Managing Director of Airline Capital  Director 2005
Associates and a Financial Advisor
Ivan L. Simpson(1)(2)(3) 59 Airline Transport Pilot for American Director 1997
Airlines

(1) Member of the audit committee.

(2) Member of the compensation committee.

(3) Member of the nominating committee.

Douglas G. Voss. Mr. Voss co-founded the Company in 1979 and served in the position of Chief Executive Officer from the Company s
inception until December 31, 2002. Mr. Voss has served as a director of the Company since the Company s inception and became Chairman of
the Board of Directors on December 31, 2002. Mr. Voss was initially licensed as a private pilot in 1974 and today holds both an Airline
Transport Pilot Certificate and an Airframe and Powerplant Mechanic Certificates. Mr. Voss is a graduate of Colorado Aero Tech. Mr. Voss has
previously served the Company in the FAA Air Carrier Certificate required operational control positions of Director of Operations and Director
of Maintenance. He is uniquely qualified to serve as our Chairman based on his rich experience with our Company as our founder and longtime
leader.

James R. Link. Mr. Link became a director of the Company in April 2005. Mr. Link has been employed as a business consultant since January
2002. He was Chief Executive Officer of Impulse Airlines in Sydney, Australia from January 2001 to December 2001. Mr. Link previously held
the following positions with Raytheon Aircraft Company: Assistant to the CEO from January 2000 to December 2000; Vice President of
Worldwide Sales from January 1998 to December 2000; Vice President of International Sales from April 1995 to December 1998; and Vice
President and Treasurer from September 1988 to May 1995. He also served as President of Raytheon Aircraft Financing from September 1988 to
May 1995. Mr. Link is qualified to serve on our board by his industry experience, and is one of our independent directors.

Vernon A. Mickelson. Mr. Mickelson became a director of the Company in January 1994. For more than the past 20 years, Mr. Mickelson has
been self-employed as a business consultant. He provided services to the
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Company concerning matters involving FAA regulatory compliance and maintenance quality control from 1988 to 1994. Mr. Mickelson has
worked in the aviation industry since 1949, primarily in the field of aircraft manufacturing and maintenance. From 1969 to 1988, Mr. Mickelson
was employed by the FAA in Flight Standards as principal inspector and supervisor of FAA maintenance and avionics inspectors assigned in the
states of Indiana and Iowa. In his career, he has held or holds several FAA maintenance certificates and FAA designations in aircraft
maintenance in addition to holding a commercial pilot s certificate. Mr. Mickelson is a graduate of Spartan School of Aeronautics (1948-49),
specializing in aircraft maintenance. Mr. Mickelson brings his long history with our industry and his more than 21 years as a business consultant
to his role as one of our independent directors.

A.R. Moulton, III. Mr. Moulton became a director of the Company in September 2005. Mr. Moulton is Managing Director of Airline Capital
Associates, and serves as a financial advisor to manufacturing companies, financial institutions, and labor unions, providing advice on all aspects
of the commercial air transportation industry. Prior to joining Airline Capital Associates in 1990, Mr. Moulton was a Senior Vice President and
head of Bank of New England s loan production office in New York City from June 1988 to June 1990. Prior to joining Bank of New England,
Mr. Moulton was a Vice President at Morgan Guaranty Trust Company from April 1974 to June 1988. Mr. Moulton is qualified to serve on our
board as one of our independent directors through his combination of over 23 years as a commercial banker, giving him financial and industry
experience.

Ivan L. Simpson. Mr. Simpson became a director of the Company in 1997. Mr. Simpson co-founded the Company in 1979, and served in
various operational roles through 1987, including Chief Pilot and Vice President and Director of Operations. He has been employed as an
Airline Transport Pilot for American Airlines since 1987. Mr. Simpson holds an Airline Transport Pilot Certificate and is Type rated in the
Boeing 757/767 and MD80 aircraft. Mr. Simpson brings a deep knowledge of our Company and our industry to his work as one of our
independent directors.

Our Executive Officers

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K and Instruction 3 to Item 401(b) of Regulation S-K, information regarding our executive
officers was provided in Part I of our Form 10-K under separate caption.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our officers, directors and persons who own more than 10% of a registered class of our equity
securities to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC. Such officers, directors and shareholders are required by the SEC
to furnish us with copies of all such reports. To our knowledge, based solely on a review of copies of reports filed with the SEC during the last
fiscal year and furnished to the registrant with respect to its most recent fiscal year, all applicable Section 16(a) filing requirements were met on
a timely basis.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or
controller, and persons performing similar functions. Our code of ethics satisfies the requirements of Item 406(b) of Regulation S-K. Our code of
ethics is posted on the Company s web site at www.flygreatlakes.com and is available in print upon written request to our Corporate Secretary at
Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd., 1022 Airport Parkway, Cheyenne, WY 82001. We intend to disclose any amendments to or waivers from a

provision of our code of ethics that requires disclosure on our website at www.flygreatlakes.com.

Audit Committee Matters

We have an audit committee that was established in accordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Exchange Act, comprised of James R. Link,
Vernon A. Mickelson, A.R. Moulton, III and Ivan L. Simpson. Under NASDAQ
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Marketplace Rules that would apply if our common stock was listed on NASDAQ, each member of the audit committee would be required to

(i) be independent as defined under Rule 5605(a)(2) of the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules; (ii) meet the criteria for independence set forth in Rule
10A-3 under the Exchange Act; (iii) not have participated in the preparation of the financial statements of our company or any current subsidiary
of our company at any time during the past three years, and (iv) be able to read and understand fundamental financial statements, including a
company s balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement. Our company s board of directors has determined that each member of the
audit committee would meet these requirements.

The functions of the audit committee include oversight of the integrity of our financial statements, our compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, and the performance, qualifications and independence of our independent auditors. Our audit committee is directly responsible for
the appointment, retention, compensation, evaluation, termination and oversight of the work of any independent auditor engaged for the purpose
of preparing or issuing an audit report or related work.

Our board of directors has determined that we do not have an audit committee financial expert serving on the audit committee. However, our
board of directors believes that the collective financial and business expertise of the members of the audit committee is sufficient to satisfy the
functions of the audit committee under the terms of the audit committee charter. Our audit committee charter is posted on our web site at
www.flygreatlakes.com and is available in print upon written request to our Corporate Secretary at Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd., 1022 Airport
Parkway, Cheyenne, WY 82001.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information concerning the compensation of our named executive officers for the fiscal years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008:

All Other
Salary Bonus Compensation Total
Name and Principal Position Year (6)] t)] $)(a) )]
Charles R. Howell IV 2009 155,000 0 3,100 158,100
Chief Executive Officer 2008 155,000 0 3,300 158,300
Michael O. Matthews 2009 150,000 0 6,000 156,000
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 2008 150,000 0 6,800 156,800
Douglas G. Voss 2009 175,000 0 0 175,000
Chairman of the Board of Directors and President 2008 175,000 0 0 175,000

(a) Represents matching contributions made by the company on behalf of Mr. Howell and Mr. Matthews under our 401(k) retirement savings
plan. These matching contributions are subject to vesting in accordance with the terms of the plan. See discussion below under Retirement
Savings Plan.

Employment Agreement

On December 31, 2002, we entered into a two-year employment agreement with Mr. Voss under which he serves as Chairman of the Board of
Directors. The agreement specifies a base salary of $120,000 annually and
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entitles him to participate in the Company s compensation and benefit plans. Subsequent to entering into this agreement, we have amended the
compensatory arrangements under the agreement to increase the annual base salary payable thereunder. The agreement provides that it may be
terminated by either party upon six months notice. In addition, under the agreement, if we terminate Mr. Voss without cause, or if he terminates
because of the company s breach of the agreement, he would receive his regular base pay for the remainder of the contract period. Our company
and Mr. Voss have agreed to continue operating under this agreement indefinitely, until such time as a new agreement becomes effective.

We currently do not have any other employment agreements with our executive officers, and do not have any other arrangements between our
company and our executive officers in connection with termination of employment, change of control of our company, or any changes to the
executive officer s responsibilities following a change of control.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table sets forth information concerning the outstanding equity awards held by our named executive officers as of December 31,
2009:

Option Awards
Number of Number of
Securities Securities
Underlying Underlying
Unexercised Unexercised Option
Options Options Exercise Option
#) #) Price Expiration
Name Exercisable Unexercisable [€)) Date
Charles R. Howell IV 200,000(a) 0 0.40 12/30/2012
Michael O. Matthews 0 0 N/A N/A
Douglas G. Voss 0 0 N/A N/A

(a) These options vested as to 100,000 shares on each of December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2004.
Retirement Savings Plan

We provide a 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan in which our employees, including the executive officers, may participate. The plan permits all
employees to set aside a portion of their income into the 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan and the company matches one hundred percent

(100%) of the first four percent (4%) contributed by an employee up to the statutory maximum. Employee contributions are vested immediately,
while matching contributions by the company vest 20% after two years of service with the company, and 20% for each year of service thereafter
until fully vested. The participation of the executive officers is on the same terms as any other participant in the plan.

Director Compensation

Our directors who are not employees of the company are paid a director fee consisting of a quarterly retainer fee of $1,000, $1,000 per day for
each board conference attended and $1,000 for each board or committee meeting attended, plus reimbursement for all out-of-pocket expenses
incurred on behalf of the company.
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The following table sets forth information concerning the compensation of our non-employee directors for fiscal year 2009:

Fees Earned or All Other
Paid in Cash Compensation Total
Name %) () %)
James R. Link 10,000 0 10,000
Vernon A. Mickelson 11,000 0 11,000
A.R. Moulton, III 10,000 0 10,000
Ivan L. Simpson 10,000 0 10,000

Messrs. Link, Mickelson, Moulton and Simpson received $4,000 in quarterly retainer fees and $5,000 for five audit committee meetings. Messrs.
Link, Mickelson and Simpson received $1,000 for one compensation committee meeting. Messrs. Mickelson and Moulton received $1,000 for
one day of board conferences.

The following table sets forth information concerning the outstanding stock options held by our non-employee directors as of December 31,
2009:

Option Awards
Number of Number of
Securities Securities
Underlying Underlying
Unexercised Unexercised Option
Options Options Exercise Option
#) #) Price Expiration
Name Exercisable Unexercisable $) Date
James R. Link 0 0 N/A N/A
Vernon A. Mickelson 0 0 N/A N/A
A.R. Moulton, III 0 0 N/A N/A
Ivan L. Simpson 5,000(a) 0 1.31 5/17/2011
5,000(b) 0 0.31 5/17/2012

(a) These options vested in their entirety on May 17, 2002.
(b) These options vested in their entirety on May 17, 2003.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
The following table sets forth certain information known to us regarding beneficial ownership of the common stock as of March 1, 2010, by
(i) each person known to the Company to own beneficially 5% or more of the common stock, (ii) each director of the Company, (iii) each
executive officer of the Company named in the summary compensation table, and (iv) all directors and executive officers of the Company as a
group. The percentage of beneficial ownership is based on 14,291,970 shares outstanding as of March 1, 2010. Any shares that are subject to an
option or a warrant exercisable within 60 days are reflected in the following table and are deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of
computing the percentage of common stock owned by the option or warrant holder but are not deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of
computing the percentage of common stock owned by any other person. Unless otherwise indicated, each person in the table has sole voting and
investment power as to the shares shown, and none of the listed shares has been pledged as security. Unless otherwise indicated, the address for
each listed shareholder is c/o Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd., 1022 Airport Parkway, Cheyenne, Wyoming 82001.
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Name and Address of

Beneficial Owner
Douglas G. Voss

Raytheon Aircraft Credit Corporation
10511 E. Central Avenue
Wichita, Kansas 67206

Gayle R. Brandt
256 Emerald Meadows Drive
Arnolds Park, Iowa 51331

Iowa Great Lakes Flyers, Inc.
10400 Milliron Road
Cheyenne, Wyoming 82009

Charles R. Howell IV

Vernon A. Mickelson
1209 3rd Avenue West
Spencer, Iowa 51301

Ivan L. Simpson
15239 215th Ave.
Spirit Lake, Iowa 51360

James R. Link
Michael O. Matthews
A.R. Moulton, III

All directors and executive officers as a group

(8 persons)

* Represents less than 1%.

Table of Contents

Amount and Nature of
Beneficial Ownership (1)

5,581,000(2)(3)
5,371,980

1,870,753(2)(3)

1,260,247(4)

200,000(5)
17,000

20,450(6)

5,840,880(7)

58

Percentage of
Common Stock (1)

39.0%
37.6%

13.1%

8.8%

1.4%

40.2%
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(1) The securities beneficially owned by a person are determined in accordance with the definition of beneficial ownership as set forth in the
regulations of the SEC and, accordingly, may include securities owned by or for, among others, the spouse, children, or certain other
relatives of such person, as well as other securities as to which the person has or shares voting or investment power or has the right to
acquire within 60 days of March 31, 2010. The same shares may be beneficially owned by more than one person.

(2) Mr. Voss is the beneficial owner of 2,450,000 shares. Ms. Brandt is the record owner of 1,870,753 shares. The 1,870,753 shares owned by
Ms. Brandt and the 1,260,247 shares owned by Iowa Great Lakes Flyers, Inc. are included in the 5,581,000 shares reported by Mr. Voss.

(3) Ms. Brandt has granted to Mr. Voss an irrevocable proxy to vote her shares until June 28, 2010. Mr. Voss and Ms. Brandt have also
entered into a Shareholder Buy-Sell Agreement with respect to such shares. The term of the agreement is until June 28, 2010 or until such
time as Ms. Brandt does not own any shares or the Company is dissolved or liquidated. Pursuant to the agreement, Ms. Brandt has the right
to require Mr. Voss to purchase her shares for a share price to be negotiated or at market price, up to a total purchase amount not to exceed
$50,000 per year. Mr. Voss has a right of first refusal to purchase for the market price any shares that Ms. Brandt desires to sell. The
agreement also provides Mr. Voss the option to purchase any shares at any time during the term of the agreement for the market price of
shares of common stock. The agreement provides that in any transaction in which Mr. Voss sells greater than 5% of his shares, Mr. Voss
has the right to compel Ms. Brandt to include the shares held by her in such transaction on the same terms as the shares of Mr. Voss. In
turn, Ms. Brandt has the right to have her shares included by Mr. Voss in any such transaction on a pro rata basis. The agreement also
provides Mr. Voss with the right to purchase the shares at the market price upon the death of Ms. Brandt or upon an involuntary
disposition of the shares held by Ms. Brandt.

(4) Beneficial ownership of these shares of Common Stock is shared with Douglas G. Voss.

(5) Represents 200,000 shares subject to currently exercisable options.

(6) Includes 10,000 shares subject to currently exercisable options.

(7) Includes an aggregate of 230,000 shares subject to currently exercisable options.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2009 with respect to compensation plans under which the Company s equity
securities are authorized for issuance.

Number of securities
remaining available for
Weighted-average exercise future issuance under equity
compensation plans (excluding

Number of securities
to be issued upon

exercise of price of outstanding options,
outstanding options, warrants, securities reflected in
Plan Category warrants, and rights and rights column (a)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders 230,000 $ 0.48 0
Equity compensation plans not approved
by security holders 0 0 0
Total 230,000 $ 0.48 0
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Item 13.  CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
Review and Approval or Ratification of Transactions with Related Persons

The audit committee of our board of directors is responsible for reviewing any proposed transaction with a related person. In May 2007, our
board of directors amended our audit committee charter to include a policy providing for the review and approval of related person transactions
requiring disclosure under Rule 404(a) of Regulation S-K. This policy states that the audit committee is responsible for reviewing and approving
or disapproving all proposed interested transactions, which are defined as any transaction, arrangement or relationship in which (a) the amount
involved may be expected to exceed $120,000 in any fiscal year, (b) the Company will be a participant, and (c) a related person has a direct or
indirect material interest. A related person is defined as an executive officer, director or nominee for director, or a greater than five percent
beneficial owner of the Company s common stock, or an immediate family member of the foregoing. The policy deems certain interested
transactions to be pre-approved, including the employment and compensation of executive officers and compensation paid to directors. All
future transactions between our company and its executive officers, directors and principal shareholders and their affiliates will be approved by
the audit committee pursuant to the foregoing policy.

Transactions with Related Persons

Raytheon Aircraft Credit Corporation. As of March 1, 2010, Raytheon Aircraft Credit Corporation (Raytheon) owned 5,371,980 shares of our
common stock, representing an approximate 37.6% interest in our outstanding common stock. We issued the shares to Raytheon in December
2002 as partial consideration for a series of transactions that included restructured financing terms for aircraft promissory notes, termination of
aircraft operating leases, aircraft purchases, aircraft returns, modified aircraft operating leases and other debt restructuring. Raytheon is our
principal creditor. As of March 1, 2010, Raytheon held promissory notes with a principal amount totaling approximately $49.0 million pursuant
to our 2002 Restructuring Agreement. See Note 5 to the financial statements of our Form 10-K for a complete description of the Restructuring
Agreement, including the continuing rights and obligations of the parties.

At March 1, 2010 the Company operated seven Beechcraft 1900D aircraft leased from Raytheon, four complete with engines and three without
engines, which are accounted for under operating lease agreements. The lease agreements require the Company to pay taxes, maintenance,
insurance, and other operating expenses applicable to the leased property. In addition to scheduled future minimum lease payments, the
Company is required to make payments to cover the cost of components related to leased engines, attached to four of the leased aircraft, as these
components usable life cycle is consumed. During the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, engine consumption fees were $314,462 and
$27,332 respectively.

Other than as set forth above, we have no transactions requiring disclosure under Item 404(a).
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Director Independence

Our company s board of directors is comprised of a majority of independent directors as defined in Rule 5605(a)(2) of the Marketplace Rules of
the NASDAQ Stock Market. Our independent directors are James R. Link, Vernon A. Mickelson, A.R. Moulton, III and Ivan L. Simpson.

Douglas G. Voss, our Chairman and President, is not an independent director. Our board of directors has an audit committee, compensation
committee and nominating committee. Each committee consists solely of members who are independent as defined in the applicable

Marketplace Rules of the NASDAQ Stock Market. In addition, each member of the audit committee is independent as defined in Exchange Act
Rule 10A-3 and each member of the compensation committee is a non-employee director as defined in Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act and is an
outside director as defined in Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The firm of KPMG LLP has been our independent auditors since 1998. Fees paid to KPMG LLP during the last two fiscal years were as follows:

Audit Fees. Fees for audit services rendered by KPMG LLP for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $383,440 and $438,195,
respectively. Audit services consisted primarily of the audit and quarterly reviews of our financial statements, consents, assistance with and
review of documents filed with the SEC, work performed by tax professionals in connection with the audit and quarterly reviews, accounting
and financial reporting consultations, and research work necessary to comply with generally accepted accounting principles.

Audit-Related Fees. Fees for audit-related services provided during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $50,800 and $45,500,
respectively. Audit-related services consisted primarily of professional services provided with respect to yearly audits of our 401(k) employee
savings plan and Passenger Facility Charge audits.

Tax Fees. Fees for tax services billed during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $0 and $33,555, respectively. Tax services
included professional services provided for preparation of federal and state tax returns, review of tax returns prepared by the company,
assistance in assembling data to respond to governmental review of past tax filings, and tax advice, exclusive of tax services rendered in
connection with the audit.

All Other Fees. During the fiscal year 2009 and fiscal year 2008, no other services were provided by KPMG LLP to the company.
Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The charter of our audit committee provides that the audit committee is responsible for the pre-approval of all auditing services and permitted
non-audit services to be performed for our company by the independent auditors, subject to the requirements of applicable law. The procedures
for pre-approving all audit and non-audit services provided by the independent auditors include the committee reviewing a budget for audit
services, audit-related services, tax services, and other services. The budget includes a description of, and a budgeted amount for, particular
categories of non-audit services that are anticipated at the time the budget is submitted. Committee approval would be required to exceed the
budgeted amount for a particular category of services or to engage the independent auditors for any services not included in the budget.
Budgeted amounts were not exceeded in 2009. The audit committee periodically monitors the services rendered by, and actual fees paid to, the
independent auditors to ensure that such services are within the parameters approved by the committee. The text of the audit committee charter
is posted on our web site at www.flygreatlakes.com. The audit committee pre-approved all of the services we received from KPMG LLP during
fiscal year 20009.
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PART IV

Item 15.  EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) The following documents are filed as a part of this report:

(1) Financial statements of the Company included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data :

@) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

(i) Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008

(iii)  Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

(iv)  Statements of Stockholders Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
W) Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

(vi)  Notes to Financial Statements
Supporting schedules are omitted because they are inapplicable, not required, or the information is presented in the financial statements or notes
thereto.

(2) The exhibits filed as part of this report and exhibits incorporated herein by reference to other documents are listed in the Exhibit
Index to this Annual Report on Form 10-K (pages E-1 through E-3).
(b) An Exhibit Index is contained on page E-1.

(c) Not Applicable.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: March 26, 2010

Table of Contents

GREAT LAKES AVIATION, LTD.

By: /s/ CHarres R. HoweLL IV
Charles R. Howell IV
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

By: /s/ MicHAEL O. MATTHEWS
Michael O. Matthews
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby constitutes and appoints Douglas G.
Voss, Charles R. Howell IV, and Michael O. Matthews, and each of them individually, as his or her true and lawful agent, proxy, and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution for such individual and in such individual s name, place, and stead, in any and
all capacities, to act on, sign, and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments to this report together with all
schedules and exhibits thereto and to take any and all actions that may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, and each such
individual hereby approves, ratifies, and confirms all that such agents, proxies, and attorneys-in-fact, any of them, or any of his or their substitute
or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ DoucLas G. Voss Chairman of the Board and President March 26, 2010
Douglas G. Voss
/s/  Cuarres R. HoweLL IV Chief Executive Officer March 26, 2010
Charles R. Howell IV (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ MicHAEL O. MATTHEWS Vice President and Chief Financial Officer March 26, 2010
Michael O. Matthews (Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)
/s/ VERNON A. MICKELSON Director March 26, 2010
Vernon A. Mickelson
/s/  Ivan L. SimpsoN Director March 26, 2010
Ivan L. Simpson
/s/  JamEs LNk Director March 26, 2010
James Link
/s/ ArLrLan R. MouLton II1 Director March 26, 2010

Allan R. Moulton ITI
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation. (1)

Amended and Restated Bylaws. (1)

Specimen Common Stock Certificate. (2)

Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd. 1993 Stock Option Plan. (2)

Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd. 1993 Director Stock Option Plan. (2)

Amended and Restated Restructuring Agreement dated as of March 9, 2007 by and between the Company and Raytheon Aircraft
Credit Corporation, including First Amendment to Amended and Restated Restructuring Agreement, entered into as of March 23,
2007, by and between Raytheon Aircraft Credit Corporation and the Company. (12)

Senior Note, dated as of March 9, 2007, issued by the Company to Raytheon Aircraft Credit Corporation. (8)

First Amendment to Security Agreement dated as of March 9, 2007, by and between the Company and Raytheon Aircraft Credit
Corporation. (8)

Form of Amended and Restated Promissory Note relating to 1900D aircraft, dated as of March 9, 2007, issued by the Company to
Raytheon Aircraft Credit Corporation. (8)

Security Agreement, dated December 31, 2002, by and between Raytheon Aircraft Credit Corporation and the Company. (3)

Fifth Amendment to Security Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2007 by and between Raytheon Aircraft Credit Corporation and the
Company. (8)

Amended and Restated Security Agreement, dated December 31, 2002 by and between Raytheon Aircraft Credit Corporation and the
Company. (3)

Form of First Amendment to Amended and Restated Security Agreement relating to 1900D aircraft, date as of March 9, 2007, by and
between the Company and Raytheon Aircraft Credit Corporation. (8)

Employment Agreement, dated December 31, 2002, by and between Douglas G. Voss and the Company. (3)

Code Share and Regulatory Cooperation and Marketing Agreement, dated February 1, 2001, by and between United Air Lines, Inc.
and the Company. (4)

Code Share Agreement, dated May 3, 2001, by and between Frontier Airlines, Inc. and the Company, as amended on February 8,
2002. Portions of this Exhibit have been excluded from the publicly available document, and the SEC has granted the Company s
application for confidential treatment of the excluded material. (4)

Amendment to Code Share and Regulatory Cooperation and Marketing Agreement by and between United Air Lines, Inc. and the
Company effective July 18, 2003. Portions of this Exhibit have been excluded from the publicly available document, and the SEC has
granted the Company s application for confidential treatment of the excluded material. (5)

Group A Engine Overhaul Note executed on December 31, 2003 by the Company and delivered to Raytheon Aircraft Credit
Corporation. (6)

Amended and Restated Term Cost Plan Agreement dated July 19, 2006 by and between Pratt & Whitney Canada Corp. and the
Company. Portions of this Exhibit have been excluded from the publicly available document, and the SEC has granted the Company s
application for confidential treatment of the excluded material. (7)

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Restructuring Agreement, entered into as of June 30, 2007, by and between Raytheon
Aircraft Credit Corporation and the Company. (9)

Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Restructuring Agreement, entered into as of July 30, 2007, by and between Raytheon
Aircraft Credit Corporation and the Company. (9)

Second Amendment to Code Share and Regulatory Cooperation and Marketing Agreement by and between United Air Lines, Inc. and
the Company, dated November 1, 2007. (10)
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Form of Aircraft Lease by and between Raytheon Aircraft Credit Corporation and the Company. (11)

Amendment No. 2 to Code Share Agreement, dated July 1, 2009 by and between Frontier Airlines, Inc. and the Company. Portions of
this Exhibit have been excluded from the publicly available document, and the SEC has granted the Company s application for
confidential treatment of the excluded material. (13)

Code of Ethics. Available on the Company s web site.

Consent of KPMG LLP.

Powers of Attorney (included on signature page).

Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of Chief Executive Officer.

Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of Chief Financial Officer (Principal Accounting and Financial Officer).

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, of Chief
Executive Officer.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, of Chief
Financial Officer.

Incorporated by reference to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, Registration No. 333-159256, as filed September 3,
2009.

Incorporated by reference to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 033-71180.

Incorporated by reference to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002. (File No. 000-23224)
Incorporated by reference to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003. (File No. 000-23224)
Incorporated by reference to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003.

(File No. 000-23224)

(6)
@)

Incorporated by reference to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004. (File No. 000-23224)
Incorporated by reference to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006.

(File No. 000-23224)

®)
®

Incorporated by reference to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.
(File No. 000-23224)
Incorporated by reference to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007.

(File No. 000-23224)

(10) Incorporated by reference to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007.

(File No. 000-23224)

(11) Incorporated by reference to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, as amended. (File

No. 000-23224)

(12) Incorporated by reference to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, Registration No. 333-159256, as filed July 14, 2009.
(13) Incorporated by reference to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, Registration No. 333-159256, as filed September 30,

2009.
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